Board of Directors
Lynn E. Maulhardt, President
Catherine P. Keeling, Vice President
Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer
Keith Ford
Mohammed A. Hasan
Steve Huber
Rachel Jones

AGENDA i Gt o
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING Legal Counsel
David D. Boyer

Monday, March 2, 2026, at 9:00 a.m.
UWCD Headquarters, First Floor, Board Room
1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030

OPEN SESSION - ROLL CALL

1.

Public Comments

Information Item

The public may comment on any matter not on the agenda within the jurisdiction of the
Committee. All comments are subject to a five-minute time limit.

Consent Calendar

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Committee
and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items
unless a Committee member pulls an item from the Calendar. Pulled items will be
discussed and acted on separately by the Committee. Members of the public who want to
comment on a Consent Calendar item should do so under Public Comments. (ROLL CALL
VOTE REQUIRED)

2.1 Approval of Agenda
Motion
Approve March 2, 2026, Finance and Audit Committee meeting Agenda.

2.2  Approval of Minutes
Motion
Approve Minutes of January 5, 2026, Finance and Audit Committee meeting.

2.3 Check Recap Monthly Reports
Information Item
Review the District’'s accounts payable recap for December 2025 and January 2026.

2.4 Investment Monthly Report
Information Item
Review the District’s investment portfolio and cash position for January 2026.

2.5 Pipeline Delivery Monthly Reports
Information Item
Review the District’s pipeline water activities for December 2025 and January 2026.

1701 N. Lombard Street, Suite 200, Oxnard, CA 93030 805 525 4431 www.unitedwater.org




Finance and Audit Committee Meeting AGENDA
March 2, 2026
Page 2

2.6 District Staff and Board Member Reimbursement for Fiscal Year 2025-26
Second Quarter Report
Information Item
Review of the expense reimbursement report for all reimbursements of business
expenses to staff and Board members for the first quarter of fiscal year 2025-2026.

2.7 Board Requested Cost Tracking Items for Fiscal Year 2025-26 Second Quarter
Report
Information Item
Review the costs that the District has incurred through December 31, 2025:

a) as part of the licensing efforts and the probable maximum flood studies for
the Santa Felicia Dam;

b) inrelation to general environmental mandates, and CESA;

c) in relation to litigation with Wishtoyo Foundation, Fifth Amendment takings,
OPV adjudication and District legal costs over the past several fiscal years;
and

d) in relation to professional fees over the past several fiscal years.

UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda Items
Review, discuss, and make a recommendation on the following agenda items to be
considered for approval during the March 11, 2026, Board of Directors meeting:

3.1 Approve Resolution 2026-04 Adopting the Proposed Financial Policy for the
Placement of Direct Assessments on the Ventura County Secured Property
Tax Roll
Motion
Consider recommending to the full Board of Directors approval of Resolution 2026-
04 adopting the proposed financial policy entitled, “Placement of Direct
Assessments on the Ventura County Secured Property Tax Roll.” This policy
formalizes the District’'s process for placing delinquent direct assessments on the
Ventura County secured property tax roll, clarifies Board and management authority,
and establishes a consistent governance framework for the placement, billing,
collection, and financial reporting of direct assessments.

3.2 Request from Farmers Irrigation Company for a Payment Plan
Motion
Consider recommending to the full Board of Directors a request from Farmers
Irrigation Company to enter a payment plan for groundwater production charges of
$556,416.06 incurred from the billing period of July 1, 2025, through December 31,
2025.

3.3 Ratify Purchase Order Agreement between UWCD and Aquatic Harvesting Inc.
Motion
Consider recommending that the full Board of Directors ratify the General Manager
entering into a purchase order agreement between UWCD and Aquatic Harvesting
to remove floating debris that has been washed into Lake Piru. This work would



Finance and Audit Committee Meeting AGENDA
March 2, 2026
Page 3

address the impact of the December 2025 storms to Lake Piru which resulted in the
Emergency Proclamation being ratified by the Board on January 5, 2026.

3.4 Ratify Purchase Order Agreement between UWCD and Quality Ag, Inc.
Motion
Consider recommending that the full Board of Directors ratify the General Manager
entering into a purchase order agreement between UWCD and Quality Ag, Inc. to
remove floating debris that had been washed into Lake Piru. This work would
address the impact of the December 2025 storms to Lake Piru which resulted in the
Emergency Proclamation being ratified by the Board on January 5, 2026.

4. Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Second Quarter Financial Report (October 1, 2025, to
December 31, 2025)
Information Item
Review the second quarter financial report for the period ending December 31, 2025, as
well as receive a presentation from the District’'s Chief Financial Officer.

5. Monthly Department Updates
Information Items
Review the monthly reports from the Administrative Services, Public Outreach and External
Affairs, and Recreation Departments as well as receive a verbal presentation of its
highlights.

5.1 Administrative Services Department Update (Chief Financial Officer Brian H.
Zahn and Chief Human Resources Officer Josh Perez)

5.2 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Update (Public Outreach and
External Affairs Manager Tara Mullaly)

5.3 Recreation Department Update (Senior Park Ranger Bernard Riedel, Jr.)

6. Future Agenda Items
The Committee will suggest topics or issues for discussion at future meetings.

ADJOURNMENT

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from
participation in, or denied the benefits of, the District’s services, programs or activities because of any disability. If
you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or if you require agenda material in an alternative format,
please contact the District Office at (805) 525-4431. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the District to make approprﬁte arrangements.

Maurici “%

¢

Approved:

Brian H. Z’aﬁn,



Finance and Audit Committee Meeting AGENDA
March 2, 2026
Page 4

This agenda was posted February 26, 2026, at 4:45 p.m. at the United Water Conservation
District Headquarters, Oxnard, CA and www.unitedwater.org.



STAFF REPORT

To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Jackie Lozano, Clerk of the Committee

Date: February 26, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 2.2 Approval of the January 5, 2026, Finance and Audit
Committee Meeting Minutes
Motion

Staff Recommendation:
Approve the attached minutes.



ATTACHMENT

Board of Directors
Lynn Maulhardt, President
Catherine Keeling, Vice President
Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer
Keith Ford
Mohammed Hasan
Steve Huber
Rachel Jones

General Manager

M | NUTES Mauricio Guardado
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING Legal Counsel
David D. Boyer

Monday, January 5, 2026, at 9:00 a.m.
UWCD Headquarters, First Floor, Board Room
1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030

OPEN SESSION

Chair Steve Huber called the meeting to order at 9:19 a.m.

Committee Members Roll Call

Present: Director Catherine Keeling and Director Huber

Absent: Director Rachel Jones was absent initially but joined the meeting at 10:15 a.m.

1. Public Comments
No public comments were received.

2. Consent Calendar
Action: M/S/C (Keeling, Huber) to approve the Consent Calendar items.
Vote: Ayes: Keeling and Huber; Noes: None; Absent: Jones

2.1 Approval of Agenda
Motion
Approved January 8, 2026, Finance and Audit Committee meeting Agenda.

2.2  Approval of Minutes
Motion
Approved Minutes of November 3, 2025, Finance and Audit Committee meeting.

2.3 Check Recap Monthly Report
Information Iltem
Received and filed.

2.4  Investment Monthly Report
Information Iltem
Received and filed.

2.5 Pipeline Delivery Monthly Report
Information Iltem
Received and filed.

1701 N. Lombard Street, Suite 200, Oxnard, CA 93030 805 525 4431 www.unitedwater.org




Finance and Audit Committee Meeting MINUTES
January 5, 2026
Page 2

Financial Report Presentation

Information Item

Certified Public Accountant Ryan Domino of LSL presented the District's Annual Financial
Audit for Fiscal Year 2024-25, presentation attached.

UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda Items

4.1 Adopt a Resolution Designating the General Manager and/or Assistant
General Manager as the District’s Authorized Agents for the Purposes of
Obtaining Federal Assistance for the 2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant
Program
Motion
Senior Park Ranger Bernard Riedel summarized this motion for the Committee,
presentation attached.

Action: M/S/C (Keeling, Huber) recommending adoption of a resolution designating
the General Manager and/or Assistant General Manager as the District’s
Authorized Agents for purposes of obtaining federal assistance provided by
Federal U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and sub-granted through the
California State Parks Division of Boating and Waterways for Fiscal Years
2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant Program

Vote: Ayes: Keeling, Huber; Noes: None; Absent: Jones.

4.2  Penalty and Interest Waiver Request from Southland Sod Farms
Motion
Chief Financial Officer Brian Zahn summarized this motion for the Committee.

Action: M/S/C (Keeling, Huber) recommending to the full Board approval of a
request from Southland Sod Farms to waive penalty and interest charges
totaling $61,350.11 incurred from the billing period July 1, 2024, through
December 31, 2024.

Vote: Ayes: Keeling, Huber; Noes: None; Absent: Jones.

Fiscal Year 2025-2026 First Quarter Financial Report (July 1 to September 30, 2025)
Information Item

Mr. Zahn summarized the first quarter financial report for the Committee, presentation
attached.

Monthly Department Updates
Information Items

6.1 Administrative Services Department Update
Finance Department monthly highlights were presented by Mr. Zahn. Chief Human
Resources Office Josh Perez presented monthly highlights from Human Resources,
Risk Management, and Information Technology Departments, presentation attached.



Finance and Audit Committee Meeting MINUTES
January 5, 2026
Page 3

6.2  Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Update
Public Outreach and External Affairs Manager Tara Mullaly presented monthly
highlights regarding the District’s public outreach activities, presentation attached.

With guidance from the General Manager Mauricio Guardado, Director Keeling
requested that additional stakeholders be invited on the tours. Director Huber added
it would be nice to know ahead of the tours who will be attending so Board members
can be prepared to welcome them there.

6.3  Recreation Department Update
Mr. Riedel presented monthly highlights regarding activities of the Lake Piru
Recreation Area, presentation attached.

7. Future Agenda Items
¢ Include a report on new 2026 laws impacting the District.

e Enhancements to Financial Report Presentation:

= Present at the upcoming Board of Directors meeting on January 14, for the record
of stating that the District successfully passed another clean audit.

= Update presentation to go into context of meeting industry standards. Specifically,
emphasis on the Key Indicator slide.

= Highlight “clean audit” on social media platform for everyone to know that its money
is well managed by a department that is highly competent.

ADJOURNMENT
Chair Huber adjourned the meeting at 10:21 a.m.

| certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the UWCD Finance and Audit

Committee Meeting of January 5, 2026.

ATTEST:
Chair Steve Huber




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Annual Financial Audit Presentation

Presentation of the Annual

Financial Audit for the Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, 2025

January 5, 2026

Management’s Responsibilities

- The preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with US GAAP

woo'sedols|

- Design and implementation of internal controls
- Evaluate if there are any conditions which indicate doubt of continued financial viability

- Complying with the requirements of federal award programs




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Annual Financial Audit Presentation

woo'sedo|s|

Auditors’ Responsibilities

Conduct the audit in accordance with:
Generally accepted auditing standards
Government Auditing Standards
State Controller’'s Minimum Audit Standards for California Special Districts

Uniform Guidance
Exercise professional judgment, and professional skepticism
Conduct a risk-based approach to the audit
Understand the entity’s internal control structure
Evaluate significant accounting estimates for reasonableness
Evaluate if there are any conditions which indicate doubt of continued financial viability

Introductory Section

Provides a letter from management highlighting key financial information
Includes an overview of the organization's mission and structure
Summarizes major achievements and challenges during the fiscal year
Presents a message on the financial health and outlook

Sets context for detailed financial statements and audit results

7]
9)
e
D
%
o)
o)
3




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Annual Financial Audit Presentation

Financial Section

Presents detailed financial statements including balance sheet and income statement
Includes notes explaining accounting policies and significant financial details

Shows changes in financial position through cash flow statements

Provides management’s analysis of financial performance and condition

Presents detailed information on required supplementary information:
Pension schedules
OPEB schedules

woo'sedo|s|

Statistical Section

Provides additional context and historical data to help users understand the financial statements.

7]
9)
e
D
%
o)
o)
3

Content:
Financial Trends: Shows how the government's financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity: Provides information on the government's ability to generate revenue.
Debt Capacity: Offers insights into the government's debt levels and ability to issue additional

debt.

Demographic and Economic Information: Includes data on the population, employment, and
economic conditions.

Operating Information: Details on the government's operations and resources.




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Annual Financial Audit Presentation

Audit Results

Unmodified auditors’ opinion

Report on Internal Controls and Compliance
No material weaknesses identified
No significant deficiencies identified
No material noncompliance identified

Change in accounting policies for GASB 101, Compensated Absences

Estimates are reasonable
Pension and OPEB liabilities

No difficulties encountered during the audit
No corrected or uncorrected misstatements
No disagreements with management

No fraud, waste, or abuse identified

woo'sedo|s|

7}

3)

: : : I

Key Financial Metrics
3

Critical Ratios vs. Benchmarks Significant Account Activities
Current Ratio = 7.3 (>1.5) Change in net position increased by
$32.9M

Quick Ratio = 7.3 (>1)
o ) Capital assets increased by $18.0M
Liabilities to Equity = 0.4 (<1)
Long-term debts increased by $9.9M

Unrestricted Equity to Expenses = 0.8
(>0.2) Pension liability decreased by $70,348

Unrestricted Equity to Next Year’s OPEB asset increased by $37,578
Budgeted Expense = 0.5 (>0.2)




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Annual Financial Audit Presentation

woo'sedo|s|

Questions?

Contact Us

7]
9)
e
D
%
o)
o)
3

www.lIslcpas.com

Ryan.Domino@lslcpas.com

(949) 829-8299

10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Motion Iltem 4.1

Recreation
Department
Grant

Application

Bernard Riedel, Jr.
Senior Park Ranger

January 5, 2026

Motion Item 4.1

Adopt a resolution designating the General Manager or Assistant General
Manager as the District’s authorized agents for the purposes of obtaining federal
assistance for the California State Parks Division of Boating and Waterways
fiscal year 2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant Program

Status:
O Applied to grant on December 19, 2025
O Grant request: Two (2) floating restrooms

Benefits:

O Convenience/Better experience for guests once current
floating restrooms are moved to the marina

O New floating restrooms are compliant with the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

O Ensure continued high quality of water produced by the
Lake Piru water treatment plant




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Motion Item 4.1




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Q1 FY2025-26 Financial Review

Q1 FY2025-2026

Financial Review

Presented by:
Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer

January 5, 2026

2026-01-05

1
Highlights — Revenue
GRANTS REVENUE DRIVE UNFAVOURABILITY TO BUDGET
REVENUE
Total operating revenue is $1.8M or 22% unfavorable to budget

* Pipeline revenue is favorable to budget by $0.3M or 16%

¢ Groundwater will be reported in Q2

e Taxes will be reported in Q2

» Other Operating Revenue is $0.2M or 60% favorable to budget

¢ Non-Operating Revenue is unfavorable to budget by $2.0M or 72% primarily due $1.7M in

Grants that have not been received yet and WIFIA loan proceeds that have not been withdrawn
in $000's Q1 FY25-26 | Q1 FY25-26 | Q4 FY24-25
Actual Budget Actual
Taxes - 234 -
Water Delivery/Fixed Cost 5,295 5,013 5,852
Groundwater 10 - (70)
Other Operating Revenue 399 250 379
Non-Operating Revenue 774 2,791 4,195
Total Revenue $ 6,478 | $ 8287 |$ 10,356
2



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting

Q1 FY2025-26 Financial Review

Highlights — Expenses

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND CAPITAL SPEND DRIVE FAVORABILITY TO BUDGET

EXPENDITURE
Total expenditures are $13.0M or 51% favorable to budget

» Professional and legal fees are favorable to budget $2.7M or 88% due to underspending
across all departments

» Operations expenses are favorable to budget $9.3M or 68% primarily due to CIP being
$8.9M and Capital $0.3M under spent

in $000's Q1 FY25-26 | Q1 FY25-26 | Q4 FY24-25
Actual Budget Actual
Personnel Expense 4,407 4,653 4,005
Professional Fees 368 3,057 458
Operating Expense 4,423 13,734 5,832
Allocated Overhead 1,642 2,322 710
Debt Service 302 793 260
Other 1,326 896 1,228
Total Expenditure $ 12467 |$ 25455|$ 12,494
3
3
Pipeline Revenue
EXCLUDING IN-LIEU OF PUMPING CHARGES
« Pipeline revenue up
15% against the budget
¢ OH 25% favorable
e PTP (13%) unfavorable
¢ PV (2%) unfavorable
Pipeline Actual Budget PY vs Budget  vs PY % var Budget % var PY
OH 3,941 3,157 3,610 785 332 25% 9%
PTP 638 732 1,384 (94) (746) -13% -54%
PV 713 731 858 (18) (145) 2% -17%
$ 5292 $ 4620 $ 5852 $ 673 $  (560) 15% -10%
4
4



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Q1 FY2025-26 Financial Review

2026-01-05

Pipeline Volume

DELIVERY VOLUME 5,292 AF YTD VS. BUDGET OF 6,318 AF

Delivery volume 16% below
budget (5,292 AF Actual vs.
6,318 AF Budget)

PTP and PV pipelines driving
the negative variance

5
Top 10 AG Pipeline Customers Q1 FY2025-26
Top AG Total Usage Total Revenue
PVCWD 1,824.90 S 700,933
OceanView 34439 § 318,209
Reiter Brothers Inc 119.20 S 68,949
Laubacher Farms Inc 117.38 S 56,721
3H Custom Farming Inc 105.70 S 45,790
Catalinos Berry Farms 103.99 S 45,514
Sorrento Berry Farms 95.40 S 57,519
Western Ag Group, LLC 7165 S 33,504
Oxnard Lemon Mutual Water Co. 59.54 § 25,554
Tom Vujovich 53.94 § 23,398
Total 1,071.19 $ 675,158
6



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Q1 FY2025-26 Financial Review

2026-01-05

Top 10 M&I Pipeline Customers Q1 FY2025-26

Top MI Total Usage Total Revenue
City of Oxnard 1,961.77 S 2,300,543
Port Hueneme Water Agency 896.58 S 1,156,877
Vineyard Estates 44.82 S 60,439
Dempsey Road MWC 3045 S 40,432
Cypress Mutual 1294 S 17,646
Saviers Road MWC 894 § 11,737
Rio Del Valle (2) 087 S 12,317
E & H Land Company, LLC (2) 062 $ 1,170
California American Water 0.05 S 51
USNCBC - S -
Total 2,957.05 S 3,601,211
7
Q1 2025-26 | Q1 2025-26 PY Varto | % Varto | Varto | % Varto
$000's Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget PY PY
Regular Salary 2,104 2518 1,899 414 16% 205 1% ool f ble t
Over-time Salary 16 68 37 52 77% 22 -58% alaries are favorable 1o
Part-time 190 249 173 59 24% 17 10% budget $0.5M or 19%
Salaries $ 2310 $ 2835 $ 2,109 525 19% 201 10% ]
« Employee Benefits are
unfavorable to budget
Retirement- Classic 1,464 528 1,284 (937) -178% 180 14% 0 : :
Retirement - PEPRA 117 130 106 13 10% 11 11% $0.7M.or 51% primarily
Soc Sec/457b Expense 124 159 120 36 22% 4 3% due to:
Medicare Expense 32 41 30 10 23% 2 6% ) )
SUIExpense 2 6 2 4 67% 0 19% o Higher Retirement
Medical Ins Exp 242 341 232 99 29% 11 5% costs
LTD 5 9 7 3 39% 2 23%
Life Insurance 4 7 5 3 40% -1 -16%
Worker's Comp Expens 52 102 63 50 49% -10 17%
OPEB 10 10 10 0 0% 0 3%
Deferred Comp 17 17 17 0) 0% 0 0%
Other 26 33 20 7 0% 6 0%
Employee Benefits ¢ 2,097 $ 1384 $ 1,896 -713 -51% 201 11%
Personnel Expenses  $ 4407 $ 4,220 $ 4,005 -187 -4% 402 10%




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Q1 FY2025-26 Financial Review

2026-01-05

Operating Expenses
PROFESSIONAL AND LEGAL FEES DRIVE BUDGET FAVORABILITY
Q1 2024-25 | Q12024-25 PY Var to % Var to Var to % Var to )
000's _ | Actual ‘ Budget | Actual Budget | Budget PY | Py ¢ Professional Fees are
Prot Fess - Emironmertal 128 e E I = R (oo oo | favorable to budget by $1.3M
Prof. Fees - IT consulting 3 50 12 47) -94% 9) -714%
Prof. Fees - Grant Consulting 0 25 6 (25) -100% © -w00% |* Legal Fees are favorable to
Prof. Fees - Other 109 683 113 (573)  -84% @ 3% budget by $1.4M
Professional Fees ®) $ 1,307 $ 201 | $ (1.313) -100% $ (207)  -103%
Legal Fees 374 1,749 $ 257 | $ (1375) -79% |$ 117 46% * Operating EXpenS_eS favorable
to budget; key variances
ilities -58% -13% H .
%ol em o | e e | include
o gio MMM E T | o Uiites S395K favorable
Office Expenses 149 330 62 (181) -55% 87 139%
Miscellaneous 269 359 244 (90)  -25% 25 10% o0 Maintenance $633K
Travel, Trainings and Meetings 37 114 22 @7) -67% 15 70%
Gasoline, Diesel, Fuel 48 62 45 (14)  -22% 3 6% favorable
Depreciation 925 920 - 6 1% 925 -
Safety, supplies, clothing 28 93 42 (64)  -69% (14)  100% o Capital/CIP $9.2M
geelrelzr::rgperating Expense: $ 3,66264 $ 13,60245 $ 2,133 $ (9,93%; 7?;;: $ 1,56; 774$o favorable
State Water Import Costs 2,083 1025 $ 1989 |$ 1058 103% |$ 94 100% o State water Import Costs
. higher due to state water
Total Operating Expenses  $ 6,116 $ 17,686 $ 4,551 | $ (11,570) -65% $ 1565 34%
purchases
9
9
Top 10 Accounts Payable Vendors Q1 FY2025-26
Vendor Payment Amount
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER $ 2,041,735.73
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION $ 1,496,150.00
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK $ 1,321,507.07
ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD AND ROMO $ 1,167,067.89
SO. CALIFORNIA EDISON $ 585,783.14
GEICONSULTANTS, INC $ 480,849.46
FOLEY & LARDNER LLP $ 236,450.38
BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION $ 219,732.06
GENERAL PUMP COMPANY $ 190,781.87
CV STRATEGIES $ 180,936.05
10
10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Q1 FY2025-26 Financial Review

2026-01-05

Supplemental Water Purchase Fund

STATUS UPDATE

Revenue ($000°'S)

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2025
Changes in Surcharge
Other

Ending Balance - September 30, 2025

11

11

12



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Administrative Services Department Monthly Update

Administrative Services Department
Monthly Update

January 5, 2026

Finance
Update

Brian H. Zahn
Chief Financial Officer




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Administrative Services Department Monthly Update

November 2025 Pipeline

Actual Budget | Variance
[ | o [ couas
OH 986 960 26

$1.2M
PTP 221 500 (278) $144K
PV 139 569 (430) $64K

Year-to-date deliveries are 10% below budget and
18% below prior year.

Finance Department

* Financial Audit’s — complete

* Annual Comprehensive Financial Report — published
 Budget Templates - sending out in December

« Budget Strategies — meeting with Executive Board Jan 12, 2026
» AP Workshop - scheduled for Jan 28, 2026

« Changing GW billing — GW Billing to match water year




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Administrative Services Department Monthly Update

Administrative

Update

Josh Perez
Chief Human Resources Officer

Human Resources

* Working on recruitment for the Senior Hydrogeologist position

* Implemented California’s 2026 Minimum Wage Law which impacted several
positions

* Onboarded three Part Time Environmental Services Field Assistants
* A new Technology Systems Intern is set to start on January 5, 2026

* Processed several Lake Piru Camp Host resignations, set to initiate
recruitment for new season in early January




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Administrative Services Department Monthly Update

2026-01-05

Risk Management

» Submitted 2023 Winter Storms Disaster Recovery Closeout documentation
for all projects except for the large debris removal effort

e Supported Engineering with submission of Annual Security Compliance
Certification to FERC and with Annual SFD Saticoy Duty Operator Dam
Safety Cross Over Training

» Oversaw Physical Installation of Dam Siren Replacement above Fire Station
28 in Piru

* Coordinated Annual First Aid Refill of First Aid Kits in District Vehicles and
Cabinets at District Facilities

» Coordinated elevator and fire contractors testing requirement per Cal/OSHA
Order to receive new permit

Information Technology

» System Maintenance, Cybersecurity, and Optimization Initiatives

o During December, Technology Systems initiated the procurement process for three 24-
port network switches to be installed at the Lake Piru facilities
0 Phishing campaign — highlight of success

» Technological Equipment Life Cycle — Deployment Progress

o Continued replacing unsupported equipment using a proactive approach that helps
reduce the long-term security exposure and operational risk associated with that
equipment hardware

» Infrastructure and System Optimization Initiatives

o Coordinated secure remote access to support Ventura County Watershed Protection
District and Law enforcement partners while ensuring access controls

8



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Administrative Services Department Monthly Update




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Update

Public
Outreach

and External
Affairs

Tara Mulally
Public Outreach and
External Affairs Manager

January 5, 2026

Outreach Events

Tours Provided

* Isbell Middle School Diversion Tour (December 16)
* AWA Diversion Tour (December 16)

Events Attended

» AWA Holiday Event (December 9)
» Piru Christmas Parade and Festival
(December 13)

Upcoming Tours
January Quarterly Tour (January 28)

Upcoming Events
Native Plant Fest (January 24)




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Update

2026-01-05

3

Successes

¢ Quarterly Tour Launch
o Attendees: 15 Registrants
o E-Blast Distribution:

¢ United Social Media Analytics
o Facebook: 98% View Increase
(3,050 New Viewers)
o LinkedIn: 467 Followers
(19 New Followers)
o Instagram: 9 Followers
o Nextdoor: 44 Interactions

¢ Lake Piru Social Media Analytics
o Facebook: 2,676 Followers
o Instagram: 1,387 Followers

Media Buy Overview

e TV
o
o

KEYT Commercial

KEYT Half Hour Paid Programming
(1 @ 11:30 a.m. weekday and

1 @ 5 p.m. Sunday per month)

» Digital

(0]

O 0O o0 o o

(0]
(0]
(0]

Display (General)

Creative Retargeting Display

Pre Roll (English)

Pre Roll (Spanish)

Run of Network (KEYT)

SEM (Search Engine Marketing - 40 clicks
per month)

Custom Branded Content (VC Star)
Display (VC Star Homepage)

Website Retargeting

e Print

&}
&}

VC Star Insert
VC Reporter (Half Page Ad)

Social Media
o Social Ads (VC Star)

Radio/Audio

o Audio Engage (Spanish)
o Audio Engage (English)
o KXLM

o KUNX

o KVEN

Email
o Email Campaign (Spanish)
o Smart Email (VC Star)
o E-Newsletter Sponsorship (VC Star)

Outdoor
o Billboard (Ventura Auto Center)
o Lotus Outdoor Digital

4



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Update

Upcoming Initiatives

Interactive Project Map

Website Content Refresh

Legislative Webpage

Funding Educational
Campaign Launch




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Monthly Update

Recreation
Department
Monthly

Update

Bernard Riedel, Jr.
Senior Park Ranger

January 5, 2026

Pothole Trail - reroute




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Monthly Update




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Monthly Update

Volunteers doing all
work by hand




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Monthly Update

Oxnard and Piru Holiday Parades

Storm - Christmas 2025




ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Monthly Update

10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Monthly Update

11

12



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 2026-01-05
UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting
Recreation Department Monthly Update

13



STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer
Sara Guzman, Finance Supervisor

Date: February 25, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 2.3 Check Recap Monthly Report—-December 2025 and January 2026
Information Item

Recommendation:
Review the District’'s accounts payable recap report for the months of December 2025
and January 2026, that are attached.

No action is required. All expenditures are in accordance with the Board approved budget
and approved financial policies of the District.

Attachment:
A. Check Recap Monthly Report — December 2025
B. Check Recap Monthly Report — January 2026



ATTACHMENT A

December 2025

Check Register Recap

Payments Reflected in System

A/P Payments
Direct Deposit/Payroll Related
FSA Payments

Total Payments Reflected in System

Top 5 Itemized by Category

NORTHWEST HYDRAULIC CONSULTANTS, INC.
BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION

GEI CONSULTANTS, INC.

GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP

SO. CALIFORNIA EDISON

$1,546,244.08
$1,329,081.24
$4,635.75

$2,879,961.07

$180,888.75
$177,847.00
$160,986.50
$150,000.00
$147,912.98

Total Disbursements 12/2025

$2,879,961.07




TOP FIVE VENDORS DECEMBER 2025

Vendor e Check Date Amount
Number

NORTHWEST HYDRAULIC CONSULTANTS, INC. 3934 12/5/2025 $149,689.25
4019| 12/18/2025 $31,199.50
BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION 3906| 12/5/2025 $177,847.00
GEI CONSULTANTS, INC. 3922 12/5/2025 $24,609.00
3971 12/11/2025 $136,377.50
GIBSON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP 3972| 12/11/2025 $150,000.00
SO. CALIFORNIA EDISON ACH4263| 12/8/2025 $6,692.71
ACH4264| 12/12/2025 $1,659.82
304090| 12/18/2025 $139,248.06
ACHA4265| 12/19/2025 $312.39




ATTACHMENT B

January 2026

Check Register Recap

Payments Reflected in System

A/P Payments
Direct Deposit/Payroll Related
FSA Payments

Total Payments Reflected in System

Top 5 Itemized by Category

ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD AND ROMO
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER

GEI CONSULTANTS, INC.

SO. CALIFORNIA EDISON

STILLWATER SCIENCES, INC.

$2,402,706.53
$1,272,493.05
$6,405.79

$3,681,605.37

$570,957.26
$448,309.85
$217,374.00
$161,008.66

$69,262.00

Total Disbursements 01/2026

$3,681,605.37




TOP FIVE VENDORS JANUARY 2026

Vendor e Check Date Amount
Number

ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, RUUD AND ROMO 4026 1/8/2026 $569,309.96
4080| 1/15/2026 $1,647.30

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER 4028 1/8/2026 $268,173.55
4161| 1/29/2026 $180,136.30

GEI CONSULTANTS, INC. 4095| 1/15/2026 $217,374.00
SO. CALIFORNIA EDISON ACHA4322 1/5/2026 $11,299.72
ACH4323 1/9/2026 $1,537.60

ACH4324| 1/16/2026 $141,834.93

ACH4325( 1/22/2026 $4,377.54

ACH4326( 1/30/2026 $1,958.87

STILLWATER SCIENCES, INC. 4069 1/8/2026 $6,028.25
4154 1/21/2026 $15,510.75

4187| 1/29/2026 $47,723.00




STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer
Sara Guzman, Finance Supervisor

Date: February 23, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 2.4 Investment Monthly Report for January 2026
Information Item

Staff Recommendation:
Review the most current investment report for the month ending January 31, 2026.

Discussion:
None. Informational only.

Fiscal Impact:
As shown.

Attachments:
Combined Investment Monthly Report for January 2026



Docusign Envelope ID: 4130CB1E-E52F-4A0C-8531-EABB626CC8A0

ATTACHMENT
United Water Conservation District
Monthly Investment Report
January 31, 2026
Weighted Avg Diversification
Days to Percentage
Investment Recap G/L Balance Maturity of Total
Citizens Business Bank 9,916,822 1 15.67%
Petty Cash 5,400 1 0.01%
County Treasury 4,415 1 0.01%
LAITF Investments 53,368,094 1 84.31%
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Securities 63,294,731 100.00%
Investment Portfolio w/o Trustee Held Funds 63,294,731
Trustee Held Funds -
Total Funds 63,294,731
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Beginning Balance Deposits (Disbursements) Ending Balance
48,368,095 5,526,618 53,894,713
Interest Interest
Earned YTD Received YTD Qtrly Yield
1,051,701 1,560,465 4.20%

I District investments are shown above and conform to the District's Investment Policy. All investment transactions during this period are included in this repor
Based on budgeted cash flows the District appears to have the ability to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months.

on behalf of

Mauricio Guardado 2/25/2026

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager Date Certified
2/23/2026

Anthony Emmert, Assistant General Manager Date Certified
2/23/2026

Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer Date Certified

F:\Reporting\Monthly Board Reports\Banking Balances & Investment Report - FY 25-26.xlsx



Docusign Envelope ID: 4130CB1E-E52F-4A0C-8531-EABB626CC8A0

United Water Conservation District

Cash Position

January 31, 2026
Fund Total | Composition Restrictions/Designations
General/Water Conservation Fund: Revenue collected for district operations
General/Water Conservation (822,157) (18,523,665) Includes General, Rec & Ranger, Water Conservation
4,962,000 Reserved for legal expenditures
4,280,257 Designated for replacement, capital improvements, and environmental projects
8,459,252 Supplemental Water Purchase Fund
General CIP Funds 22,862,881 22,862,881 Appropriated for capital projects
15,167,274 15,167,274 Reserved for CIP Projects
Special Revenue Funds: Revenue collected for a special purpose
State Water Project Funds 8,952,752 8,952,752 Procurement of water/rights from state water project
Enterprise Funds: Restricted to fund usage
Freeman Fund (2,103,504) (2,103,504) Operations, Debt Service and Capital Projects
- Designated for replacement and capital improvements
- Reserved for legal expenditures
Freeman CIP Fund 6,034,894 6,034,894 Appropriated for capital projects
OH Pipeline Fund 3,038,012 3,038,012 Delivery of water to OH customers
OH CIP Fund 3,293,954 3,293,954 Appropriated for capital projects
OH Pipeline Well Replacement Fund 215,409 215,409 Well replacement fund
PV Pipeline Fund 1,109,271 1,109,271 Delivery of water to PV customers
PV CIP Fund 259,956 259,956 Appropriated for capital projects
PT Pipeline Fund 8,323,800 8,323,800 Delivery of water to PTP customers
PT CIP Fund (3,037,810) (3,037,810) Appropriated for capital projects
Total District Cash & Investments 63,294,731 63,294,731

F:\Reporting\Monthly Board Reports\Monthly Cash Position reports FY

2

2

6.x1Isx



STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer
Sara Guzman, Finance Supervisor

Date: February 23, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)
Agenda Item: 2.5 Pipeline Delivery Monthly Report for December 2025 and

January 2026
Information Item

Staff Recommendation:
Review the current pipeline delivery reports for December 2025 and January 2026
that are attached.

Fiscal Impact:
As shown.

Discussion:
Informational only.

Attachment:
A. Pipeline Delivery Report for December 2025
B. Pipeline Delivery Report for January 2026



Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Totals

YTD

Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Totals

YTD

Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Totals

YTD

ATTACHMENT A

United Water Conservation District
Pipeline Water Deliveries (Acre-feet)
FY 2025-26 data thru December 31, 2025

OH Pipeline 2025-26 OXNARD HUENEME PIPELINE
Projection Actual Variance
960 968 8 1,600
970 1,110 140
940 1,223 283 1400
1,070 1,039 (31) 1,200
960 987 27
820 955 135 & 1000
770 - &
750 - g 800
o
840 - < 600
830 -
1,080 - 400
1,030 -
11,020 6,282 562 200
5.720] 6,282 | 562 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
mm— Actual Budgeted e === FY 2024-25
YTD Actual to Budget: 9.8%
__PT Pipeline 2025:26__ PUMPING TROUGH PIPELINE
Projection Actual Variance
340 244 (96) 800
560 535 (25) 800
500 375 (125) 200 L’ N
780 826 46 7 \§
500 221 (279) 600 ,,'/ \‘
300 269 (31) 2l 0 e \
300 o N
Q|
380 - gl 400 /4 \
380 ; < g 3
510 - 4
560 - 200 — —
490 -
5,600 2,471 (509) 100 I
2,980 I 2,471 I (509) Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
- e Actual Budgeted e == FY2024-25
YTD Actual to Budget: -17.1%
PV Pipeline 2025-26 PLEASANT VALLEY PIPELINE
Projection Actual Variance 1,400
495 704 209
588 676 88 1,200 PN
966 475 (491)
996 531 (465) 1,000 Se====c
569 139 (430) 2 /‘7
800
337 209 (128) f—j -_-____
465 - 5 600
419 - <
161 - 400
318 -
281 - 200
ml = r
6,000 2,734 (1,217) -
3,951 | 2,734 | (1,217) e Actual ——— Budgeted === FY 2024-25
YTD Actual to Budget: -30.8%




Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Totals

YTD

Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Totals

YTD

Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Totals

YTD

OH Pipeline 2025-26

United Water Conservation District
Pipeline Water Deliveries (Acre-feet)
FY 2025-26 data thru Janaury 31, 2026

ATTACHMENT B

OXNARD HUENEME PIPELINE

Projection Actual Variance
960 968 8 1,600
970 1,110 140
940 1,223 283 1400
1,070 1,039 (31) 1,200
960 987 27
820 955 135 o 1,000
770 821 51 J‘I_’
750 _ g 800
840 - < 600
830 -
1,080 - 400
1,030 -
11,020 7,103 613 200
6,490 I 7,103 I 613 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
mm— Actual Budgeted e e e FY 2024-25
YTD Actual to Budget: 9.4%
__ U FEe AV PUMPING TROUGH PIPELINE
Projection Actual Variance
340 244 (96) 800
560 535 (25) 800
500 375 (125) 00 J .
780 826 46 . Ny
500 221 (279) 600 4 / \‘
300 269 (31) B 500 ~—a \
300 338 38 4
bt / \ P
380 - 5| 400 5 —
380 - < w00 g \~’ L
510 - 4
560 - 200 —] —
490 -
1 — S
5,600 2,809 (471) 00
3,280 | 2,809 | (471) Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
e Actual Budgeted e == FY2024-25
YTD Actual to Budget: -14.4%
PV Pipeline 2025-26 PLEASANT VALLEY PIPELINE
Projection Actual Variance 1,400
495 704 209
588 676 88 1,200 PTN
966 475 (491)
996 531 (465) 1,000 »----/.4—— \
569 139 (430) 2 -
800 <
337 209 (128) f --__~ -
465 287 177) 5 600
419 - <
161 - 400
318 -
281 - 200 t
405 - .
6,000 3,021 (1,395) - .
4,416 3,021 (1,395) —Actual === FY2024-25
YTD Actual to Budget: -31.6%




STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 25, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 2.6 District Staff and Board Member Reimbursement for
Fiscal Year 2025-26 Second Quarter Report (September 1

through December 31, 2025)
Information ltem

Staff Recommendation:

Review the report detailing the reimbursement of expenses to District staff
members and members of the Board in compliance with Government Code
§53065.5.

Discussion:

The District's Expense Reimbursement Policy requires quarterly reporting of all
expense reimbursements, in the amount of $100 or more, made to Board Members
or employees. In accordance with that policy, attached is the list of reimbursement
payments for the Finance Committee’s review.

Please find attached the report detailing the reimbursements made during the
second quarter of fiscal year 2025-2026.

Attachment:
Second Quarter FY2025-2026 List of Employees and Directors Reimbursements



Vendor Name

JOSH PEREZ
TONY HUYNH

STEPHEN HUBER
JOSH PEREZ
MOHAMMED HASAN
STEPHEN HUBER
DESTINY RUBIO

JOSH PEREZ

TESSA LENZ

HAVEN WHIPPLE
JOSH PEREZ

TESSA LENZ

ERNIE FLORES
RANDALL MCINVALE
MARISSA CARINGELLA
MAURICIO GUARDADO
ERNIE FLORES
MAURICIO GUARDADO

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

CHECK REPORT

QUARTER ENDED 12/31/2025

Payable Description

REIMBURSEMENT FOR SHUTTERSTOCK SOFTWARE PURCHASED

REIMBURSEMENT FOR DONUTS AT SAFETY TRAINING
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT FOR ASIS CERTIFICATION
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT / SEPTEMBER 2025
REIMBURSEMENT FOR RECRUITMENT EXPENSES

TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT / OCTOBER 2025

TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT / OCTOBER 2025
REIMBURSEMENT FOR FOOD AND DRINKS PURCHASED
REIMBURSEMENT FOR DISTRICT EXPENSES

MILEAGE AND GASOLINE REIMBURSEMENT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR MILEAGE

REIMBURSEMENT FOR ACWA MEETING TRAVEL COSTS
REIMBURSEMENT FOR ANNUAL BOOT ALLOWANCE / FY 25-26
BOOT ALLOWANCE E.FLORES / EL RIO

FY 25-26 BOOT REIMBURSEMENT

REIMBURSEMENT FOR TUITION COSTS

REIMBURSEMENT FOR UBER COSTS

REIMBURSEMENT FOR BACKFLOW TESTER CERTIFICATION
REIMBURSEMENT FOR UBER COSTS

Payable Payment

Amount Amount
$828.00 $828.00
$60.60 $1,925.78

$1,865.18

$797.80 $797.80
$923.03 $923.03
$316.80 $316.80
$117.60 $117.60
$187.77 $187.77
$118.74 $118.74
$266.20 $266.20
$148.19 $148.19
$1,715.05 $1,715.05
$293.26 $293.26
$296.30 $296.30
$290.44 $290.44
$3,500.00 $3,500.00
$133.05 $133.05
$1,840.00 $1,840.00
$202.71 $202.71
$13,900.72 $13,900.72

Payment
Date

10/02/2025

10/02/2025

10/23/2025
11/13/2025
11/13/2025
11/13/2025
12/05/2025
12/05/2025
12/05/2025
12/11/2025
12/18/2025
12/18/2025
10/02/2025
10/16/2025
12/11/2025
12/11/2025
12/18/2025
12/18/2025

ATTACHMENT

Check
Number
3608
3630

3750
3847
3854
3862
3911
3926
3948
3974
4015
4023
303871
303917
304069
304071
304084
304088



Vendor Number
Payable #

United Water Conservation District, CA

Vendor Name
Payable Type

Post Date

Bank Code: Citizens AP Bank-Citizens Business - AP Bank

RUBO1
2025-12-01

ERNO1
2025-09-29

ERNO1
2025-12-12

HAVO1
2025-12-08

PERO2
2025-09-30

PERO2
2025-10-31

PERO2
2025-11-24

PERO2

2025-12-08B

CARO8
2025-12-08

GUAO5
2025-12-08

GUAO5
2025-12-16

HANO1
2025-10

MCIlo1
2025-10-10

HUBO1
2025-09

HUBO1
2025-10

LENO1
2025-12-01

LENO1
2025-12-15

DESTINY RUBIO
Invoice

Ernie Flores
Invoice

Ernie Flores
Invoice

Haven Whipple
Invoice

JOSH PEREZ
Invoice

JOSH PEREZ
Invoice

JOSH PEREZ
Invoice

JOSH PEREZ
Invoice

Marissa Caringelia
Invoice

MAURICIO GUARDADO
Invoice

MAURICIO GUARDADO
Invoice

MOHAMMED HASAN
Invoice

Randall Mclnvale
Invoice

Stephen Huber
Invoice

Stephen Huber
Invoice

Tessa Lenz
Invoice

Tessa Lenz
Invoice

12/05/2025

10/03/2025

12/19/2025

12/12/2025

10/03/2025

11/14/2025

12/05/2025

12/19/2025

12/12/2025

12/12/2025

12/19/2025

11/14/2025

10/17/2025

10/24/2025

11/14/2025

12/05/2025

12/19/2025

Payment Date Payment Type
Payable Description

12/05/2025 EFT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR FOOD AND DRINK

10/02/2025 Regular
BOOT ALLOWANCE E.FLORES / EL RIO

12/18/2025 Regular
REIMBURSEMENT FOR BACKFLOW TESTE

12/11/2025 EFT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR MILEAGE

10/02/2025 EFT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR SHUTTERSTOCK S

11/13/2025 EFT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR RECRUITMENT EX

12/05/2025 EFT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR DISTRICT EXPENSE

12/18/2025 EFT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR ACWA MEETING T

12/11/2025 Regular
REIMBURSEMENT FOR TUITION COSTS

12/11/2025 Regular
REIMBURSEMENT FOR UBER COSTS

12/18/2025 Regular
REIMBURSEMENT FOR UBER COSTS

11/13/2025 EFT
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT / OCTOBER 202

10/16/2025 Regular
FY 25-26 BOOT REIMBURSEMENT

10/23/2025 EFT
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT / SEPTEMBER 2

11/13/2025 EFT
TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT / OCTOBER 202

12/05/2025 EFT
MILEAGE AND GASOLINE REIMBURSEME

12/18/2025 EFT
REIMBURSEMENT FOR ANNUAL BOOT ALL

Check Report

By Vendor Name

Date Range: 10/01/2025 - 12/31/2025

Discount Amount

Discount Amount

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Payment Amount Number
Payable Amount
0.00 187.77 3911
187.77
0.00 296.30 303871
296.30
0.00 1,840.00 304084
1,840.00
0.00 148.19 3974
148.19
0.00 828.00 3608
828.00
0.00 923.03 3847
923.03
0.00 118.74 3926
118.74
0.00 1,715.05 4015
1,715.05
0.00 3,500.00 304069
3,500.00
0.00 133.05 304071
133.05
0.00 202.71 304088
202.71
0.00 316.80 3854
316.80
0.00 290.44 303917
290.44
0.00 797.80 3750
797.80
0.00 117.60 3862
117.60
0.00 266.20 3948
266.20
0.00 293.26 4023
293.26

1/7/2026 2:51:58 PM

Page 1 of 3



Check Report Date Range: 10/01/2025 - 12/31/2025

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Payable # Payable Type Post Date Payable Description Discount Amount Payable Amount

HUYO1 TONY HUYNH 10/02/2025 EFT 0.00 1,925.78 3630
2024-09-24 Invoice 10/03/2025 REIMBURSEMENT FOR DONUTS AT SAFET 0.00 60.60
2025-09-30 Invoice 10/03/2025 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT FOR ASIS CERT 0.00 1,865.18

Bank Code Citizens AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 6 6 0.00 6,262.50
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 13 12 0.00 7,638.22

19 18 0.00 13,900.72

1/7/2026 2:51:58 PM Page 2 of 3



Check Report

Fund
999
999
999

Payment Type
Regular Checks

Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Name

Clearing Fund
Clearing Fund
Clearing Fund

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payable Payment
Count Count

6 6

0 0

0 0

0 0

13 12

19 18

Fund Summary
Period

10/2025
11/2025
12/2025

Discount
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Payment
6,262.50

0.00
0.00

0.00
7,638.22
13,900.72

Amount

4,138.32
1,357.43
8,404.97
13,900.72

Date Range: 10/01/2025 - 12/31/2025

1/7/2026 2:51:58 PM

Page 3 of 3



STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer
Sara Guzman, Finance Supervisor

Date: February 25, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)
Agenda Item: 2.7 Board Requested Cost Tracking Items for Fiscal Year

2025-26 Second Quarter Report
Information Iltem

Staff Recommendation:
Review the costs that the District has incurred through December 31, 2025:
a) as part of the licensing efforts and the probable maximum flood studies for

the Santa Felicia Dam;

b) inrelation to general environmental mandates, and CESA;

c) inrelation to litigation with Wishtoyo Foundation, Fifth Amendment takings,
OPV adjudication and District legal costs over the past several fiscal years;
and

d) in relation to professional fees over the past several fiscal years.

Background:

The Finance and Audit Committee members requested a monthly update of the
accounting being maintained by the District for costs being incurred for various
items. The attached report provides data through December 31, 2025.

Fiscal Impact:
As shown.

Attachment:
Consolidated Cost Summary



ATTACHMENT

United Water Conservation District
Consolidated Cost Summary Report
Through December 31, 2025

2002-03 137,116

2004-05 527,191 53,364

2006-07 74,929 10,554 71,678 170,323

2008-09 364,883 1,483,036 458,887 1,267,547 822,498 2,090,045
2010-11 407,597 123,915 306,071 374,490 255,183 992,758 1,247,941
2012-13 531,196 6,942 568,207 291,674 52,222 261,810 1,316,817 1,578,627
2014-15 968,028 120,094 116,393 725,345 232,259 227,522 85,654 505,973 1,811,454 2,317,427
2016-17 435,599 257,750 139,791 666,810 613,210 23,373 1,029,773 1,030,758 1,535,352 2,566,110
2018-19 735,757 436,136 137,761 659,368 431,494 193,240 1,174,589 2,104,842 2,526,710 4,631,553
2020-21 298,484 1,692,037 22,583 533,030 348,733 1,540,385 259,432 2,301,320 4,841,413 2,115,988 6,957,400

2022-23 907,733 921,871 9,189 607,690 288,682 215,063 44,519 294,337 1,749,252 98,668 3,393,774 69,178,088 72,571,862

2024-25 639,851 1,257,723 138,133 489,850 309,481 1,397 115,675 4,898 900,802 2,035,523 5,389,055 2,108,882 7,497,938

* Does not include City of San Buenaventura judgment

Current Activity Narrative:
FERC - The activity for Q2 ($100) was spent on staff time ($73), professional services ($10K), legal fees ($15K), and other expenses ($2K).
PMF - The activity for Q2 ($33K) was spent on staff time ($4K), Professional Services ($28K) and Permitting ($1K).
General/Water Cons - There were salary costs of ($9K), and professional services ($6K) in Q2.
Freeman - The activity for Q2 ($133K) was spent on staff time ($130K), professional services ($2K), and other expenses ($1K).
Quagga - The activity for Q2 ($54K) was spent on staff time ($29K), and professional services ($25K) related to quagga mussel eradication and the scientific dive agreement.
0. Mykiss CESA - Second quarter activity ($37K) was spent on staff time ($6K) and legal fees ($31K)
OPV Adjudication The activity for Q2 ($793) was spent on staff time ($8), and legal fees ($785K)
Takings Claim - Minimal legal fees associated with the Takings Claim.
Wishtoyo - The activity for Q2 ($50K) was spent on salaries ($8K) and legal fees ($42K) related to the Wishtoyo complaint.
Legal Fees - Includes all legal fees for the District. These fees were dominated by the OPV adjudication, FCGMA SGMA, SFD FERC and General Counsel.
Other Prof Fees - Includes all contracted professional fees except legal fees. These fees were dominated by fish passage, SFD EAP, quagga related services, and administrative costs.

01\data\FINANCE\R: ing\Monthly Board Reports\C: i Cost Summary Report FY 25-26.xIsx



STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 26, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 3.1 Approve Resolution 2026-04 Adopting the Proposed Financial
Policy for the Placement of Direct Assessments on the Ventura

County Secured Property Tax Roll
Motion

Recommendation:

Consider recommending to the full Board of Directors approval of Resolution 2026-04
adopting the proposed Financial Policy entitled “Placement of Direct Assessments
on the Ventura County Secured Property Tax Roll.” The policy formalizes the
District’'s process for placing delinquent direct assessments on the Ventura County
secured property tax roll, clarifies Board and management authority, and establishes
a consistent governance framework for the placement, billing, collection, and
financial reporting of direct assessments.

Background:

United Water Conservation District's (UWCD) Finance Department currently has limited
tools available to collect delinquent amounts from non-paying accounts. Existing efforts
are largely restricted to collection calls, emails, written notices, or, in limited
circumstances, seeking a cease-pumping order through Board action.

The proposed policy enables the District to utilize the existing Ventura County program
that allows eligible delinquent amounts to be collected through placement on the Ventura
County secured property tax roll. This mechanism provides a structured, enforceable, and
legally supported method for improving collection outcomes on delinquent accounts.

The proposed policy operates at a governance level and does not establish new
assessments, modify assessment methodologies, or change existing billing or collection
practices. Rather, it documents the authority structure, roles, and responsibilities
associated with the placement of direct assessments on the secured property tax roll.



Agenda Item: 3.1 Approve Resolution 2026-04 Adopting the Proposed Financial

Policy for the Placement of Direct Assessments on the Ventura
County Secured Property Tax Roll
Motion

Key provisions of the proposed policy include:

Board Authorization: Confirms that direct assessments placed on the secured
property tax roll require formal approval by the Board of Directors through adoption
of a resolution.

Management Administration: Assigns responsibility to the General Manager and
Chief Financial Officer for administering assessments, coordinating with Ventura
County agencies, and ensuring accurate financial reporting and reconciliation.

County Coordination: Acknowledges the respective roles of the Ventura County
Auditor-Controller and Tax Collector in reviewing assessment submittals, billing
assessments, collecting revenues, and remitting proceeds to the District.

Internal Controls and Reporting: Establishes expectations for reconciliation of
collections, monitoring of delinquencies, and appropriate disclosure in the District’s
financial statements.

Adoption of the policy enhances transparency, strengthens internal controls, and provides
a clear reference document for Board members, auditors, and external stakeholders.

Fiscal Impact:

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with adoption of the proposed policy. The policy
does not authorize new assessments, increase assessment rates, or create additional
administrative costs. However, it is expected to improve the District’s ability to collect
delinquent amounts.

Attachments:
A. Resolution 2026-04
B. Proposed Policy
C. Direct Assessments - Secured Property Tax Roll Process Flow



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT ADOPTING A BOARD POLICY
ENTITLED
“PLACEMENT OF DIRECT ASSESSMENTS ON THE VENTURA COUNTY
SECURED PROPERTY TAX ROLL”

WHEREAS, the United Water Conservation District (“District”) is authorized under
applicable provisions of California law to levy direct assessments against real property
for authorized District purposes; and

WHEREAS, when authorized by law and approved by the Board of Directors, such
direct assessments may be collected through placement on the Ventura County secured
property tax roll; and

WHEREAS, the District has historically administered direct assessments in
coordination with Ventura County in accordance with statutory requirements and
established County procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to formalize existing practices through
adoption of a Board policy establishing governance, accountability, and financial control
expectations; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the policy does not authorize any new assessment, modify
existing rates, or change current billing practices.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the United
Water Conservation District does hereby resolve as follows:

1. The Board hereby adopts the Board Policy entitled “Placement of Direct
Assessments on the Ventura County Secured Property Tax Roll,” attached as
Exhibit A.

2. The policy establishes Board-level governance for the placement and
administration of direct assessments on the Ventura County secured property
tax roll.

3. The Board delegates authority to the General Manager and Chief Financial
Officer to administer and implement the policy in coordination with Ventura
County.

4. Adoption of this resolution results in no fiscal impact and authorizes no specific
new assessments.

5. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.



Resolution No. 2026-04
Page 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of March 2026.

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

ATTEST:

Lynn E. Maulhardt, President

Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer



ATTACHMENT B

Placement of Direct Assessments on the Ventura County
Secured Property Tax Roll

Effective March 11, 2026

OBJECTIVE/PURPOSE

The United Water Conservation District (UWCD) utilizes direct assessments to collect
on delinquent accounts in a lawful, transparent, and controlled manner by placing such
assessments on the Ventura County secured property tax roll when approved by the
Board of Directors.

This policy establishes the governance framework, authority, and accountability for the
placement, collection, and financial reporting of direct assessments.

GENERAL GUIDELINES

e This policy applies to all direct assessments levied by UWCD that are authorized
to be collected through the Ventura County secured property tax roll, including
delinquent extraction and delivery charges.

e Direct assessments are imposed pursuant to applicable provisions of California
law and formal action by UWCD’s governing body. Placement on the secured
property tax roll is subject to acceptance and processing by Ventura County.

Definitions
e Direct Assessment: A charge levied against specific parcels of real property
and collected as a lien through the secured property tax roll.

e Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN): The unique identifier assigned to each
parcel of real property.

e Secured Property Tax Roll: The annual property tax roll for secured real
property maintained by Ventura County.

Responsibilities

Board of Directors

Responsibilities: Conduct required public hearings and protest proceedings, adopt
resolutions approving and confirming assessments and authorize placement of
assessments on the secured property tax roll.

Control Requirement: Resolutions must clearly identify the assessment year, affected
parcels, assessment amounts, and authorized method of collection.

Page 1 of 4



General Manager

Responsibilities: Ensure statutory and procedural compliance, designate responsible
staff for assessment administration and execute or authorize official submittals to
Ventura County, as required.

Finance Department

Responsibilities: Coordinate assessment development and certification, prepare
parcel-level assessment roll data, submit assessment packages to Ventura County and
record, reconcile, and report assessment revenues.

Control Requirement: Verify parcel data accuracy and reconcile assessment totals to
Board-adopted amounts.

Ventura County Auditor-Controller

Responsibilities: Review assessment resolutions for legal sufficiency, validate parcel
data, totals, and formatting and post approved assessments to the secured property tax
roll.

Ventura County Assessor/Tax Collector

Responsibilities: Bill assessments on secured property tax statements, collect
payments, penalties, and interest, enforce delinquent collections and remit net proceeds
to UWCD.

Administrative Implementation

Assessment Roll Preparation

Responsible Party: Finance Department
Timeline: Within 10-15 business days prior to Board action

1. Compile parcel-level assessment data, including APN, situs address, and
assessment amount
2. Prepare a certification summary for Board approval
3. Assemble the assessment package, including:
0 Resolution
o Parcel-level data file
0 Authorized signatory documentation

Assessment Authorization

Responsible Party: Governing Board
Timeline: January—May (or as required by statute)

1. Conduct noticed public hearings and protest proceedings

Page 2 of 4



2. Adopt a final resolution confirming:
0 Assessment year
0 APNSs subject to assessment
0 Assessment amounts
o Collection through the secured property tax roll

Submittal to Ventura County

Responsible Party: Finance Department
Timeline: By Ventura County secured roll submission deadline (typically June—July)

1. Submit the complete assessment package to the Ventura County Auditor-
Controller

2. Respond to County review comments and correction requests
3. Obtain confirmation of acceptance for secured roll placement

Control Point: Late or incomplete submissions may result in deferral of assessments to
a subsequent tax year.

Placement on Secured Property Tax Roll

Responsible Party: Ventura County Auditor-Controller
Timeline: July—August

1. Load approved assessments into the County property tax system
2. Associate assessments with individual APNs
3. Establish assessment liens effective January 1 of the assessment year

Billing and Collection

Responsible Party: Ventura County Tax Collector
Timeline: Secured tax bills issued: October - Installment due dates: December 10 and
April 10

1. Include assessments on annual secured property tax bills
2. Collect payments, penalties, and interest
3. Apply statutory enforcement measures for delinquent accounts

Revenue Remittance

Responsible Party: Ventura County Tax Collector
Timeline: Periodic distributions, typically December through June

1. Deduct authorized County administrative fees
2. Remit net collections to the District
3. Provide remittance detail and collection reports

Page 3 of 4



Accounting and Reconciliation

Responsible Party: Finance Department
Timeline: Ongoing; formal reconciliation at fiscal year-end

Record assessment revenue in the general ledger

Reconcile County remittances to adopted assessment totals
Track delinquencies and unpaid balances

Record allowances for doubtful accounts, if applicable

5. Disclose assessment revenue in the Agency’s financial statements

NS

Ongoing Administration (Multi-Year Assessments)

Responsible Party: Finance Department
Timeline: Annually

1. Confirm continuing assessment authority
2. Update parcel data for parcel changes, appeals, or cancellations
3. Submit updated assessment rolls for subsequent tax years

Internal Control Principles

e Board-approved resolution review prior to County submission

e Independent reconciliation of parcel totals to certified assessment roll

e Segregation of duties between assessment preparation and accounting
e Monitoring of County reports for delinquencies and discrepancies

Records Retention

All assessment-related records, including resolutions, parcel files, County
correspondence, and remittance reports, shall be retained in accordance with UWCD’s
records retention policy and applicable state law.

Policy Review and Amendment

This policy shall be reviewed periodically and updated as statutory requirements,
County procedures, or District practices change.

Page 4 of 4



ATTACHMENT C

Direct Assessments — Secured Property Tax Roll Process Flow

1. Board Authorization
Board of Directors adopts resolution approving
assessment, parcels, amounts, and secured roll
collection.

2. Administrative Preparation
Finance Department prepares parcel data,
reconciles totals and assembles County submittal.

3. County Review and Acceptance
Auditor-Controller reviews legal sufficiency,
validates data and accepts assessment.

4. Secured Roll Placement
Assessment loaded to County system and lien
established as of January 1.

5. Billing and Collection
Tax Collector bills assessment on secured tax bills
and collects payments.

6. Revenue Remittance
County remits net revenues to UWCD with reports.

7. Accounting and Reconciliation
Finance records revenue, reconciles collections,
and reports in financial statements.




STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer
Sara Guzman, Finance Supervisor

Date: February 10, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 3.2 Request from Farmers Irrigation Company for a Payment Plan
Motion

Recommendation:

Consider recommending to the full Board of Directors a request from Farmers Irrigation
Company to enter a payment plan for groundwater production charges of $556,416.06
incurred from the billing period of July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025.

Discussion:

On January 15, 2026, Mr. Barney Caudill, a representative of the Company (Company),
contacted the District informing staff that the Company would face difficulty meeting the
deadline for full payment of its production charges due to considerable expenses incurred
from damage sustained during the December 2025 storms. Following calculation of the
Company’s production charges, totaling $741,888.07, Mr. Caudill requested a payment
plan.

Mr. Caudill proposed paying the balance in four quarterly installments of $185,472.02
each. To demonstrate the Company’s commitment, payment was submitted for the first
installment on February 2, 2026, leaving a remaining balance of $556,416.06. He also
expressed confidence that the Company may be able to satisfy the balance ahead of
schedule. The Company has not had a payment plan in the past three years. Therefore,
staff recommend that the Board approve the proposed payment plan.

Fiscal Impact:
Minimal fiscal impact, General Water Conservation Funds will receive funds for Fiscal
Year 25-26 later than anticipated.

Attachments:

A — UWCD Payment Plan Request and Payment Schedule

B — Email Request from Mr. Barney Caudill

C — Semi-Annual Groundwater Production Statements for July to December 2025



ATTACHMENT A






ATTACHMENT B






ATTACHMENT C

































STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Bernard Riedel, Senior Park Ranger
J.D. Smallwood, Operations Supervisor — Water Supply & Distribution
Adrian Quiroz, Senior Engineer

Cc: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 23, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 3.3 Ratify Purchase Order Agreement between UWCD and Aquatic
Harvesting Inc.
Motion

Recommendation:

Consider recommending that the full Board of Directors ratify the General Manager
entering into a purchase order agreement between UWCD and Aquatic Harvesting Inc.
for lake debris removal services in connection with the 2026 Lake Piru Debris Removal
Project.

Discussion:
On February 19, 2026, the General Manager executed the attached Purchase Order —
Construction Work with Aquatic Harvesting Inc. (Attachment A) for a not-to-exceed fee
of $475,000.

Per the Proclamation of Local Emergency at Lake Piru Recreation Area, ratified by the
UWCD Board of Directors on January 5, 2026, the significant storms events of December
2025 brought about numerous floating debris fields to Lake Piru. Due to the fluctuations
in reservoir elevation since the storms, some of the debris has been deposited onto the
lake shoreline at numerous locations as well as the upstream face and spillway of Santa
Felicia Dam. The presence of this debris at the Lake Piru Recreation Area continues to
pose a significant threat to public safety, operations, and recreation management.

To initiate the debris removal efforts, Staff conducted numerous site visits and solicited
proposals from eight (8) contractors and two (2) construction inspection and observation
firms. After careful consideration of each proposal, it was determined that the preferred
approach to the 2026 Lake Piru Debris Removal Project was to utilize two (2) water-side
contractors to remove floating debris from the lake. One primary water-side contractor will
be collecting and removing the majority of the floating debris from the lake, while a



Agenda Item: 3.3 Ratify Purchase Order Agreement between UWCD and Aquatic
Harvesting Inc.
Motion

secondary water-side contractor would be supporting with the removal of the large-sized
logs on an as-needed basis. The water-side contractors would then deliver the debris to
the Lake Piru Marina where a land-side contractor would load the debris onto hauling
equipment. The material would then be hauled off site and delivered to the Piru Spreading
Grounds where the woody debris material would be allowed to dry out and subsequently
processed (shredded or chipped). The land-side contractor would also be staged at a
second location at the crest of the Santa Felicia Dam, where they would utilize a crane to
facilitate removal of debris from the face of the dam, spillway and directly from Lake Piru
with support from the water-side contractors. A construction observation and inspection
firm would be on site full time to document the time and materials employed by the three
(3) contractors as well as the total number of loads of material removed from the site. This
documentation will be used for payment tracking purposes as well as for supporting a
potential reimbursement request application for California Disaster Assistance Act
(CDAA) funding.

Aquatic Harvesting Inc. was the contractor selected to perform the primary water-side
contractor work described above. The proposed maximum not-to-exceed fee for their
scope of work is $475,000 which will be compensated on a time and material
reimbursement basis. This work is expected to begin in early March and be completed
within 20 working days. Following completions of the work, Staff will potentially seek
reimbursement for this work through CDAA funding, if available.

Fiscal Impact:

Funds will be appropriated to Account No. 020-200-52290, to cover the $475,000 fee
associated with this Purchase Order, from reserves or the recently received FEMA
reimbursement funds.

Attachment:
Executed Purchase Order — Construction Work with Aquatic Harvesting Inc.



ATTACHMENT

PURCHASE ORDER - CONSTRUCTION WORK

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
1701 N. Lombard St., Suite 200

Oxnard, CA 93030
Telephone (805) 524-4431

Important terms of this Purchase Order — Construction Work (“Agreement”) are printed on the following
pages. For your protection, make sure that you read and understand all provisions before signing. The terms
and conditions are incorporated in this document and will constitute a part of the contract between the parties
when signed.

TO:  Aquatic Harvesting Inc. - DATE: February 19,2026
232 Amigo Rd. P.O. #:
Danville, CA 94526

United Water Conservation District (“UWCD”) retains Contractor, and Contractor agrees to perform the
following work per its attached proposal (incorporated herein under Exhibit A) dated February 19, 2026.

2026 Lake Piru Debris Removal Project

Contract price: $475.000.00 (Time and Materials) (Maximum Not-to-
— Exceed))

Completion date: 20 Warking Days

Instructions: Please sign and return both originals along with appropriate insurance documentation. Upon
acceptance by UWCD, a copy will be signed and promptly returned to you. Insert below the names of your
authorized on-site representatives.

Accepted: United Water Conservation District Contractor: Aquatic Harvesting Inc.

Title:  President
Other authorized representatives: Other authorized representatives:

1 of 10



Page 2 of 10



rage o vl 1v



rage 4+ vl 1v



ragco J vl 1v



employee.

[

Responsibility for Work - Until the completion and final acceptance by UWCD of all the work under and
Page 6 of 10



1Tugv s Vi v



provisions. -

Disputes - Any dispute between the parties shall be filed and heard in a court of competent Jurisdiction in
the County of Ventura. ‘

between the parties.

-Page 8 of 10



EXHIBIT A - PROPOSAL

Page 9 of 10






STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Bernard Riedel, Senior Park Ranger
J.D. Smallwood, Operations Supervisor — Water Supply & Distribution
Adrian Quiroz, Senior Engineer

CC: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 23, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 3.4 Ratify Purchase Order Agreement between UWCD and Quality
Ag, Inc.
Motion

Recommendation:

Consider recommending that the full Board of Directors ratify the General Manager
entering into a purchase order agreement between UWCD and Quality Ag, Inc. for lake
debris removal services in connection with the 2026 Lake Piru Debris Removal Project.

Discussion:

On February 19, 2026, the General Manager executed the attached Purchase Order —
Construction Work with Quality Ag, Inc. (Attachment A) for a not-to-exceed fee of
$301,424.

Per the Proclamation of Local Emergency at Lake Piru Recreation Area, ratified by the
UWCD Board of Directors on January 5, 2026, the significant storms events of December
2025 brought about numerous floating debris fields to Lake Piru. Due to the fluctuations
in reservoir elevation since the storms, some of the debris has been deposited onto the
lake shoreline at numerous locations as well as the upstream face and spillway of Santa
Felicia Dam. The presence of this debris at the Lake Piru Recreation Area continues to
pose a significant threat to public safety, operations, and recreation management.

To initiate the debris removal efforts, Staff conducted numerous site visits and solicited
proposals from eight (8) contractors and two (2) construction inspection and observation
firms. After careful consideration of each proposal, it was determined that the preferred
approach to the 2026 Lake Piru Debris Removal Project was to utilize two (2) water-side
contractors to remove floating debris from the lake. One primary water-side contractor will
be collecting and removing the majority of the floating debris from the lake, while a



Agenda Item: 3.4 Ratify Purchase Order Agreement between UWCD and Quality
Ag, Inc.
Motion

secondary water-side contractor would be supporting with the removal of the large-sized
logs on an as-needed basis. The water-side contractors would then deliver the debris to
the Lake Piru Marina where a land-side contractor would load the debris onto hauling
equipment. The material would then be hauled off site and delivered to the Piru Spreading
Grounds where the woody debris material would be allowed to dry out and subsequently
processed (shredded or chipped). The land-side contractor would also be staged at a
second location at the crest of the Santa Felicia Dam, where they would utilize a crane to
facilitate removal of debris from the face of the dam, spillway and directly from Lake Piru
with support from the water-side contractors. A construction observation and inspection
firm would be on site full time to document the time and materials employed by the three
(3) contractors as well as the total number of loads of material removed from the site. This
documentation will be used for payment tracking purposes as well as for supporting a
potential reimbursement request application for California Disaster Assistance Act
(CDAA) funding.

Quality Ag, Inc. was the contractor selected to perform the primary land-side contractor
work described above. The proposed maximum not-to-exceed fee for their scope of work
is $301,424 which will be compensated on a time and material reimbursement basis. This
work is expected to begin in early March and be completed within 20 working days.
Following completions of the work, Staff will potentially seek reimbursement for this work
through CDAA funding, if available.

Fiscal Impact:

Funds will be appropriated to Account No. 020-200-52290, to cover the $301,424 fee
associated with this Purchase Order, from reserves or the recently received FEMA
reimbursement funds.

Attachment:
A — Executed Purchase Order — Construction Work with Quality Ag, Inc.



ATTACHMENT



Page 2 of 11’



ragc o vl 11



= A



Safety Measures and Public Convenience - Contractor shall provide for the protectiorr of all persons and
property as herein specified. Attention is called to “Construction Safety Orders: and General Safety
Orders” of the California State Industrial Acmdent Commission to which Contractor is requlred by.law to

conform.

Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance - Contracto‘ry shall provide and
maintain at all times during the performance of this agreement, the followmg commercial general liability
and automobile liability i insurance:

Coverage - Coverage for commerc1a1 general liability and automobile llab]llty insurance shall be
at least as broad as the following:

1.

Insurance Services Office (ISO) Commercial General L1ab111ty Coverage
(Occurrence Form CG 0001)

Insurance Services Office (ISO) Business Automobile Liability Coverage (Form
CA 0001), covering Symbol 1 (any auto)

Limits - The Contractor shall maintain limits no less than the following: -

1.

General Liability - Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily
injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability
Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit or products-completed
operations aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to the project/location (with the ISO CG 2503, or ISO CG 2504, or
insurer’s equivalent endorsement provided to UWCD) or the general aggregate
limit and products-completed operations aggregate limit shall be tw1ce the required
occurrence limit.

Automob1le Liability - One million dollars ($1,000 000) for bodrly injury and
property damage each accident limit.

“Required Provisions - The general liability and automobile liability pOllCleS are to contain, or be
endorsed to contaln the following provrsrons ~

I.

UWCD, its directors, officers, employees and agents are to be given insured status
(via ISO endorsement CG 2010, CG 2033, or insurer’s equivalent for general
liability coverage) as respects: liability arising out of the activities performed by or
on behalf of Contractor; products and completed operations of the Contractor;

- premises owned, occupied or used by Contractor; and automobiles owned, leased,

hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations
on the scope of protection afforded to UWCD its directors, employees or agents.

For any claims related to the work, Contractor’s insurance shall be primary
insurance as respects UWCD, its directors, officers, employees or agents. Any

~ insurance, self-insurance, or other coverage maintained by UWCD or its directors,

officers, employees, or agents shall not contribute to it.

Page 5of 11



employee.

Responsibility for Work - Until the completion and final acceptance by UWCD of all the work under and
v | - Page6of1l |



~out of this Agreement or the performance thereof.

Partial IhVaIidity - If any term, covenant, conditi,on"o_r provision of this Agreement is found by a court of

Page 7 of 11



~ provisions.

Disputes - Any dispute between the parties shall be filed and heard in a court of competent jurisdiction in
the County of Ventura. : ‘

between the parties.

Page 8 of 11



EXHIBIT A - PROPOSAL

Page 9 of 11






. Bond-Premium- 1 $11,349. S - . 11,349.00
Total , - § . .301,424.00

- Page 11 of 11



STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 25, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)
Agenda Item: 4. Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Second Quarter Financial Report

(October 1, 2025 — December 31, 2025)
Information Item

Staff Recommendation:

Review the Fiscal Year 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Reports for the period ending
December 31, 2025, as well as receive a presentation from the District's Chief Financial
Officer.

Discussion:

The District prepares quarterly financial reports for each quarter which provide an analysis
of District operations through the end of each quarter to highlight variances and for fiscal
accountability.

This report represents six months of financial information for District operations for Q2 fiscal
year 2025-26 (50 percent of the total fiscal year). Included in this report are budget to actual
comparisons to date for District revenues, expenditures, and water deliveries, as well as
discussion of any significant variances. This report is based on unaudited financial data and,
therefore, is subject to revision as staff makes any necessary adjustments that may occur
during the year.

While some funds appear to have some savings potential, adjustment recommendations
may not be made at this time because the potential savings may be the result of delays in
timing and, therefore, may not materialize.

Staff currently offer no recommendations for budget adjustments.
Attachments:

A — CIP Status FY2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Reports
B — FY2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Reports



ATTACHMENT A

Board of Directors
Lynn E. Maulhardt, President
Catherine P. Keeling, Vice President
Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer
Keith Ford
Mohammed A. Hasan
Steve Huber
Rachel Jones

General Manager
Mauricio Guardado

March 2, 2026 Legal Counsel

David D. Boyer

Board of Directors
United Water Conservation District

Subject: Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports
Dear Board Members:

Enclosed for your review are the United Water Conservation District’'s (District) Fiscal Year
(FY) 2025-2026 Second Quarter Financial Reports. These reports represent six months of
financial information for District operations as well as Capital Improvement Project (CIP)
updates (October 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025).

The report focuses primarily on the operating funds of the District and corresponding CIP
funds:

General/Water Conservation Fund
Recreation and Ranger Activities Sub-fund
Freeman Fund

Oxnard/Hueneme Pipeline (OHP) Fund
Pleasant Valley Pipeline (PVP) Fund
Pumping Trough Pipeline (PTP) Fund
State Water Import Fund

Overhead Fund

Staff provides the Board's Finance and Audit Committee with monthly cash position and
pipeline delivery activities reports throughout the fiscal year. Quarterly financial reports are
submitted to the Board to provide information on the financial status of the District and to
assure the Directors and District customers that staff is operating within the parameters of
the annual adopted budget, including any supplemental appropriations. At the end of each
fiscal year, an outside certified public accounting firm performs an independent financial
audit to test staff's financial reporting accuracy and internal controls. It is staff's responsibility
to ensure that the Board has received adequate financial information throughout the year so
that there are no surprises, and so that fiscally prudent decisions can be made when the
Board is asked to consider approval of budgeted and unbudgeted expenditure requests.

This report compares the revenues and budget appropriations for the fiscal year-to-date with
data to provide the Board and District customers with a preliminary financial view (subject to
audit adjustments at year-end). The following discussion will provide a summary of the
District's projected revenues and approved spending plan compared to what actually
occurred throughout the fiscal year. It also provides an update on approved and funded CIPs.



UWCD Board of Directors
Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports
Page 2

OPERATING FUNDS
Narrative and graphical analyses are provided by fund (and the Recreation sub-fund) on the
pages following the CIP Status.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM STATUS
A one-page summary of the District’s current five-year CIP appears along with Benchmark
Interest Rates as part of Attachment B. As of December 31, 2025, all CIP expenditures are
within the total amount appropriated by the Board.

The majority of the CIPs that have been funded are currently underway, either in the planning,
design, or construction stages of the project. Please refer to the end of the CIP status section
for a list of acronyms.

e Well Replacement Program (CIP # 8000)
o On November 5, a Professional Services Agreement for Hydrogeologic and Field
Oversight Services in Connection with the Rehabilitation and Redevelopment of
Wells El Rio Nos. 17, 13, and 14 was executed with KYLE Groundwater, Inc.
o The District's consultant, KYLE Groundwater, Inc., prepared a workplan for
redevelopment of Well No. 17 to address high turbidity in produced water.

¢ Freeman Diversion Expansion (CIP # 8001)

o Staff coordinated with the design team (NHC and GEI) and technical advisors on the
preliminary design and cost estimates for the Improved Denil. On November 13, Staff
conducted a site visit with GEI to support the 30% design effort for the Improved
Denil. Six key staff members from GEI joined four United staff members for an
extensive site walk of the existing Freeman Facility and related infrastructure. In
early December, Staff provided a workshop to Recharge Operators to discuss
proposed changes to the Freeman facility and to obtain feedback from frontline
operators.

o On November 6, Legal counsel submitted an ex parte application to Judge Carter to
extend all deadlines in the September 10, 2025, Opinion (Dkt 693) by 60 days due
to the federal government shutdown. Wishtoyo opposed United's application and on
November 10, 2025, Judge Carter issued an order denying the application. Due to
the denial of the ex parte application, and in accordance with the requirements of
the September 10, 2025, Court Order, on November 10, 2025, United submitted a
request to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for initiation of ESA Section 7
consultation for construction of the Hardened Ramp fish passage design.

0 OnDecember 9, 2025, the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) issued the final grant
agreement for the WaterSMART Environmental Water Resource Projects program
award to the Freeman Diversion Fish Screen and Fish Bypass System project. The
grant award totals $3 million for construction.

o0 On December 16, 2025, United staff met with NMFS West Coast Region staff to
discuss the Improved Denil fish passage project, and on December 17, 2025, United
staff met with CDFW staff to present the project. Additionally, on December 30, 2025,
United staff met with CDFW staff to discuss permitting processes to support the



UWCD Board of Directors
Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports
Page 3

January 8, 2026, permit deadlines outlined in Judge Carter’'s September Opinion, as
a follow-up to a November 13, 2025, meeting on the same subject.

Santa Felicia Dam Outlet Works Rehabilitation (CIP # 8002)

0 On October 3, GEI submitted the Intake Control Facility Structural Analysis TM which
was reviewed by the District and BV. On December 22, Staff submitted the Updated
Kinematic and Structural Stability Analysis of Sloping Intake Structure to FERC and
DSOD.

o0 In October through December, Staff received multiple RFIs from Cal OES related to

the HMGP sub-application for the SFD OW Improvement Project. Staff prepared and
submitted responses in coordination with BV and GEI to Cal OES.

o On November 18, Staff presented to the VC Board of Supervisors on the SFD SIP,
during which the Board adopted a resolution supporting the project.

o On November 25, Staff e-filed a request with FERC for an extension of time to close
any remaining BOC comments on the SFD OW Project by BOC Meeting No.
11, which had been rescheduled from November 3-4, 2025, to March 25-26, 2026.

Freeman Conveyance System Upgrade — Freeman to Ferro Recharge Basin (CIP #
8018)
o0 Three Barrel Culvert Replacement:

= There are no updates for this time period.

o Inverted Siphon Replacement:
= This project is complete, and there are no updates for this time period.

0 Vineyard Avenue Crossing:
= On October 28, Staff submitted Progress Report/Invoice No. 8 to DWR for the
IRWM Prop 1 Round 2 grant.
= On December 31, the Caltrans encroachment permit application was officially
accepted for the Vineyard Ave Crossing.

Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment (CIP # 8019)

o Staff continued coordination with NBVC Environmental, Public Works, and Real
Property Management Staff on Site Approval Requests (SAR) for the Phase 1
project. On December 5, Staff received the fully executed Navy approval for Phase
1A SAR (remaining field activities related to design). Staff provided responses to
multiple Navy RFIs related to the Phase 1B SAR (30% design).

o In October, Staff received sieve analyses for the EBB-2 and EBB-4 exploratory
borings. The information will be used by the well design subconsultant (RCS) in the
well gravel pack design. In October, K/J's electrical engineer reviewed and provided
comments on the power monitoring study prepared by P2S, Inc. Additionally, K/J's
structural engineer reviewed and provided comments on the draft geotech report
prepared by Earth Systems.



UWCD Board of Directors
Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports
Page 4

On November 12, Staff submitted the SWRCB invoice and progress report No. 5
and the revised labor certification on November 18 related to the SWRCB GWGP
grant.

On November 19, Staff held a meeting with NBVC’s Leadership. Staff provided
project background, project status, and a financial summary. NBVC’s Leadership
agreed to elevate the priority of review and approval of the Phase 1A and 1B SARs.
On November 3, Staff received a request from NBVC regarding the expiring Phase
1A license agreement which authorizes access for land surveying, geotechnical
exploration, and environmental surveying. Staff discussed a potential two-year
extension with NBVC Staff. On December 5, Staff issued a Letter of Request to
CNRSW for a Phase 1A license extension for 2 years (February 2026 to February
2028).

On December 3, Staff as well as Director Huber met with Commander Navy Region
Southwest Rear Admiral Rich Jared in San Diego to provide a debrief on the
Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment project and to confirm the Navy’s
continuous support of the project.

Throughout December, Staff updated the water quality database for reporting EBB
sampling data to the State, planned for geotechnical site work and installation of
piezometers, and conducted quarterly sampling for monitoring wells.

Rice Avenue Grade Separation Project (CIP # 8021)

0}

Staff continued to monitor construction progress. The Contractor continues to build
the earthen embankment east of PTP Well No. 4 and anticipates constructing piles
for the bridge embankment supports over Fifth Street between late 2025 and early
2026. District Staff anticipate conducting a land survey in 2026 of the area south of
PTP Well No. 4, which the County identified as the parcel to be incorporated into
the PTP Well No. 4 site and transferred to the District upon completion of
construction to ensure ease of access to the well site in the future.

Pumping Trough Pipeline Metering Improvement Project (CIP # 8022)

(0]

(0]

0}

Staff continued to work with the property owner at PTP Turnout No. 156 for final
signatures on the proposed easement deed.

On October 9, Staff received an executed copy of Amendment No. 5 providing a
descoping from sixty-two (62) to fifty-seven (57) PTP turnout meters and a time
extension through January 31, 2026, for the Prop 1 Agricultural Water Use
Efficiency Grant.

State Water Interconnection (CIP # 8025)

There are no updates for this time period.

Asset Management System — CMMS System (CIP # 8041)

o0 After completion of an Asset Management Program pilot project related to the El Rio

Disinfection Facility and OH Pipeline, Staff worked with its consultant (HDR) to



0}

UWCD Board of Directors
Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports
Page 5

develop a scope of work for the next stage of OH Pipeline condition assessments
and cathodic protection system improvements.
In early December, Staff completed the PV asset registry and utility binder.

Pumping Trough Pipeline Recycled Water Connection — Laguna Road Pipeline (CIP
# 8043)

(0]

Staff continued planning and coordination efforts with the City of Oxnard and
PVCWD for short-term operational testing for recycled water deliveries through the
new Laguna Road Recycled Water Pipeline. Staff continued to update the
LARWQCB on the short-term operational testing planning efforts.

Staff continued to work with Toro Enterprises, Inc. on a pressure testing plan of the
newly installed flow meter. Staff closed out VCWPD permit (2024-029) related to the
construction of the Laguna Road Pipeline on December 18.

SCADA Hardware Update (CIP # 8046)

Staff completed the project to move the SCADA alarm notification system from WIN-
911 to the Ignition platform. The project was successful and is ready for
implementation and deployment. Staff has successfully completed a PLC upgrade at
the Freeman Diversion, going from PLC technology to EPIC (Edge Programmable
Industrial Controller) technology by OPTO22.

Lake Piru Recreation Area Pavement Maintenance Program (CIP # 8047)

0}

On November 7, Staff submitted a CDFW Boating Access Grant Program
application and 65% design documents for pavement rehabilitation in the Marina
area requesting a grant amount of $363,000 to partially cover a total estimated
project cost of $484,000. There is a 25% local cost match requirement for the grant.
Award announcements are anticipated in Summer 2026.

Main Supply Pipeline Sodium Hypochlorite Injection Facility (CIP # 8053)

0}

This project has been postponed until further notice.

Lake Piru Campground and Recreation Area Renovations (CIP # 8055)

0}

Staff consulted with prospective consultants in the development of a scope of work
to improve the LPRA Water Treatment Plant operations which is currently operated
in a manual batch process mode due to a lack of automation and encounters
operational issues with changing source water quality.

Staff coordinated with environmental testing companies to receive quotations for
hazardous material testing for the LOG and Oak Lane restrooms in preparation of
bid documents for a restroom repair project.

Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Low-Flow Upgrade (CIP # 8056)

0}

This project has been postponed until further notice.



UWCD Board of Directors
Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports
Page 6

Piru Early Warning System Replacement (CIP # 8058)

0 The contractor completed the physical installation of the new replacement siren at
Fire Station 28 in Piru. This siren matches the new siren that was installed at the Piru
Spreading Grounds in Q1 FY 2025-2026.

Oxnard Hueneme Well No. 13 Rehabilitation (CIP # 8059)

o On November 5, a Professional Services Agreement for Hydrogeologic and Field
Oversight Services in Connection with the Rehabilitation and Redevelopment of
Wells El Rio #17, #13, and #14 was executed with KYLE Groundwater, Inc.

OH Well 14 Energy Efficiency Upgrades (CIP # 8060)

o On November 5, a Professional Services Agreement for Hydrogeologic and Field
Oversight Services in Connection with the Rehabilitation and Redevelopment of
Wells El Rio #17, #13, and #14 was executed with KYLE Groundwater, Inc.

El Rio Office Rehabilitation (CIP # 8061)
0 There are no updates for this time period.

OHP Gas Booster Replacement Project A (CIP # 8062)
0 This project is on hold.

[This space is intentionally left blank.]



UWCD Board of Directors
Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports

Page 7
Acronym Index
Acronym Definition
BOC Board of Consultants
BV Black & Veatch Corporation
Cal OES California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services
CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife
CIP Capital Improvement Project
CMMS Computerized Maintenance Management System
DWR California Department of Water Resources
EBB Extraction Barrier and Brackish
ESA Environmental Science Associates; or Endangered Species Act
GEl GEI Consultants, Inc.
GWGP Groundwater Grant Program
HDR HDR Consultants, Inc.
HMGP Hazard Mitigation Grant Program
IRWM Integrated Water Management Plan
K/J Kennedy Jenks Consultants
LOG Lower Olive Grove
LPRA Lake Piru Recreation Area
NBVC Naval Base Ventura County
NMFS National Marine Fisheries Service
NHC Northwest Hydraulic Consultants, Inc.
O&M Operations and Maintenance
OH Oxnard Hueneme
OHP Oxnard-Hueneme Pipeline
ow Outlet Works
PLC Programmable Logic Controller
PTP Pumping Trough Pipeline
PVCWD Pleasant Valley County Water District
PVP Pleasant Valley Pipeline
RFI Request for Information
SAR Site Approval Request
SFD Santa Felicia Dam
SIP Safety Improvement Plan
SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board
USBR United States Bureau of Reclamation
WTP Water Treatment Plant/Project
VCWPD Ventura County Watershed Protection District




UWCD Board of Directors
Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports
Page 8

CASH POSITION AND INVESTMENTS OF THE DISTRICT

As of December 31, 2025, the District had a total of $63.3M in cash and investments. As
noted in the cash position report, some of the District's resources are readily available for
use, while other funds have restrictions that limit how they can be used. The District must
adhere to any legal, bond, or contractual restrictions placed on funds. However, some
restrictions are based on Board designations and can be redirected for other uses if the
Board so determines.

The District's cash, cash equivalents and securities held in the various accounts as
compared to the prior year are as follows:

Dec-25 Dec-24
Citizens Business Bank $ 9,916,822 $ 9,286,066
Petty Cash $ 5400 $ 5,400
County Treasury $ 4,415 $ 3,217
LAIF Investments $ 53,368,094 $ 24,612,033
Total $ 63,294,731 $ 33,906,716

Any restrictions on the remaining $63.3M are listed in this report. If you have any questions
regarding this report on the financial position, please let me know.

Respectfully submitted,

Brian H. Zahn
Chief Financial Officer



ATTACHMENT B

FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

General/Water Conservation Fund

Revenue Status v. Budget

e Revenue received through the Second Quarter totals $5.3M, which is $4.9M (48%) below
plan. This shortfall is predominantly due to delayed receipt of awarded grant funding but is
expected to meet projections by the end of the fiscal year.

e Groundwater Revenue reflects adjustments from the prior fiscal year. The first billing of FY
2025-26 was completed in February 2026.

e Water Delivery totaled $2.2M, $195K (8%) below Plan, can be attributed to deliveries of
1164 AF under projection, driven by weather conditions.

Page 1 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Earnings on Investments are $119K (42%) below Budget, due to market adjustments and
an interfund loan coming out of Fund 050.

Grant Revenue shortfall of $3.3M (100%) from delayed SCRCB Grant payment for the
Phase 1 Pumping of Coastal Brackish Groundwater Wells Project.

Property Taxes received in the second quarter are under plan by $232K due to timing
differences but are expected to pick up later in the fiscal year.

Recreation Activities Revenue is higher than budgeted by $18K (3%).

Revenue Status v. Prior Year

Second quarter revenue was $3.3M (39%) higher than the previous fiscal year, primarily
due to receipt of the grant payments in the 2024-25 FY.

Grant Revenue in the second quarter is $2.9M lower than the prior fiscal year, mainly due
to delayed Grant reimbursements and the initiation of two additional grants for Phase 1
Pumping Coastal Brackish GW Project and Flood Diversion and Recharge Enhancement
Project.

Water Delivery Revenue is $220K (11%) higher in the current fiscal year, mainly due to an
increase in rates. However, there were 2,705 (19%) AF less delivered in 2025-26.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget

Total Expenditures were $21.8M, $4.4M (17%) under Plan, largely due to Transfers out for
CIP of $10.8M, ($2.5M) 19% under plan due to Wifia Loan proceeds.

Operating Expenditures also contributed to the savings, being $2.3M (26%) below Budget.
This is largely attributed to decreased expenses in Professional Fees.

Overall Professional Fees were $582K under Budget, mainly due to savings in
Environmental Services ($751K) from delays in studies for State Water Import and reduced
activity in other professional services. These savings were partially offset by higher legal
services costs related to OPV, FERC, and Takings Claim, with total legal expenses
reaching $2.5M, $891K over plan for appointed legal counsel.

Public Relations Outreach and Education was less than projected by $217K in Fund 010.
Outreach efforts should increase throughout the remainder of the fiscal year.
Maintenance Expenditures reflect $408K in underspending, with savings resulting from
FEMA reimbursement in Fund 020.

Salaries and Benefits ($4.2M) are over plan ($494K) due to upfront payments for
CALPERS unfunded liability and payroll liabilities for the 2025-26 fiscal year.

Budgeted Principal ($184K) and Interest payments ($178K) related to 2020 COP Payments
are budgeted as expenses but paid directly to liability.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year

Expenditures are $5.8M (36%) higher in the current fiscal year largely due to higher
Transfers-Out ($3.8M) for Capital Improvement Projects.

Page 2 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Personnel Cost are also $606K greater in the current fiscal year, stemming from a Board
approved 3% COLA increase, annual merit increase and an increase in CalPers unfunded
liability payments.

Operating Expenditures in the second quarter are up $1.5M (30%) compared to last year.
Largely attributed to higher general and administrative expenses, totaling $957K.
Maintenance Costs in the current fiscal year are $178K lower than FY 2024-25. This is due
in part to funds received from FEMA for the damage at Lake Piru.

Higher Insurance Expense ($182K) in current fiscal year compared to FY 2024-25.
Capital Outlay is also lower in the current fiscal year by $146K, which is attributed to
traveling screens rebuild that occurred last year.

Fund Balance

The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately
$1.449M.

The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $4M for this fund, which
is not expected to be met.

Page 3 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Recreation Sub-Fund

Revenue Status v. Budget
e Operational Revenue in the Second Quarter is above plan by $18K (3%), which is mainly
due to higher than anticipated Vehicle Passes Revenue.

Revenue Status v. Prior Year
e Compared to the Second Quarter of FY 2024-25, revenues increased by nearly $10K
(2%), due to increased camping reservations and filming fees revenue in Current Year.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget
e Total Expenditures were $3.6M, $419K (10%) under Budget due to lower Operating
Expenditures ($286K), and Personnel Costs ($128K).

Page 4 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Salary ($90K) and Benefits ($38K) Costs savings are due to temporary staffing being
utilized for Landscaping and Social Media functions. Vacancies in the Park Ranger
positions are expected to be filled, leaving underspent costs in regular salaries ($60K) to
be utilized by fiscal year end.

Professional Fees ($5K) resulted in savings of $51K from less than expected use of legal
services ($20K), Sherifs Department Contract Services being under-utilized during the
slow season and Marketing & Advertising savings due to new in-house Outreach position.
Overall Maintenance costs ($166K) are still below Plan due to offset from reimbursement
payment received from FEMA ($332K).

Vehicle Maintenance costs ($47K) are over plan by $33K due to increased repairs for
Recreation Utility vehicles and operated trucks.

Savings are slightly offset by insurance costs ($57K) due to increased liability premiums
for the year occurring after the purchase of new rental boats for Recreation use.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year

Expenditures are $1.9M (113%) higher in the current fiscal year, predominantly due to
Transfers out for CIP projects ($2M).

Contributing to increase is Miscellaneous Expense ($42K), mainly related to Costs of
Goods Sold, which was higher in FY 2025-26 due to purchases of ice, merchandise, and
inventory for Condor Point Store.

Personnel Costs ($680K) also are higher ($185K) in the current fiscal year compared to
the second quarter of FY 2024-25.

Capital Outlay for Capital Improvement Projects is ($215K) lower in fiscal year 2025-26
due to FEMA reimbursements, slightly offsetting the increase.

Page 5 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Freeman Diversion Fund (Zone B)

Revenue Status v. Budget
e Revenue for the Second Quarter was $1.69M, which is under the plan $174K (9%). This was

primarily due to a decrease of $140K (1,164 AF) in water deliveries to the three pipelines.
Additionally, contributing to the lower revenue was $38K in groundwater adjustments and
delayed grant revenue of $30K related to a Cal OES State and Local Cybersecurity grant
which is expected to be invoiced later in the fiscal year.

Page 6 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Offsetting the decrease in revenue was the increase of $27K (70%) in Earning on Investments
due to higher LAIF interest rates. Also $7K (14%) additional revenue in late fees, rents and
leases.

Revenue Status v. Prior Year

FY 2025-26 Second Quarter is $350K (17%) lower than the prior year, primarily due to a $409K
(2,706 AF) decrease in water deliveries. Additional contributing factor is a $17K (22%)
reduction in late fee charges compared to last year.

In contrast, investment earnings increased by $51K (346%) due to higher LAIF interest rates
this year.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget

Total year-to-date expenditure is $6.3M, which is $540K (8%) below budget. Primarily
attributed to the underutilization of operating expenditures totaling $581K (27%) and capital
outlay of $16K (24%).

The major contributor of underutilization are Principal payments related to the 2020 COP and
the Interfund Loan are below plan by $207K, as these items are budgeted as expenses but
paid directly to liabilities. Followed by overhead cost of $182K that is expected to pick up next
guarter. Savings also in maintenance expenditure, which shows savings of $107K, partially
due to FEMA reimbursement assistance and delays in equipment maintenance.

Additional savings in permits and licenses by $31K, chemical treatment by $19K, and other
miscellaneous expenses by $25K.

Interest Expense is $40K lower due to the timing of the second bond payment, which is
scheduled to be posted in the third quarter.

Professional fees are under $18K due to delayed billing for legal, consulting, and
environmental services. These costs are expected to catch up in the next quarter.
Operational savings are partially offset by insurance expenses that are $60K higher. Also, fuel
expenses are up by 9K due to higher gas prices.

Benefits are over budget by $52K. This variance is primarily driven by higher retirement costs:
CalPERS Classic ($67K) and Pepra ($3K). While Workers' Compensation expense shows a
savings of $9K, and medical insurance coverage shows a savings of $7K.

Salary is also over plan by $7K due to FY 2025-26 Board-approved 2% COLA increase and
annual merit increases.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year

Compared to prior fiscal year, total expenditure in the current fiscal year increased by $869K
(16%).

The major contributor to the increase is Transfers-Out for Capital Improvement Projects
$693K (21%) in the current fiscal year. Followed by Salaries and Benefits of $70K.

Page 7 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

e Also, Operational Expenditure up this year by $126K (9%) attributed to the increase in
insurance expenses of $31K. Current maintenance expenses are $23K higher due to the
delayed processing of FEMA reimbursement assistance.

e Additional higher utilization compared to last year in fuel expenses by $7K, permits/licenses
of $4K, and safety supplies for $4K.

e These increases were partially offset by lower professional fees this fiscal year by $65K,
mostly related to delayed billings expected to be received next quarter. Miscellaneous
expenses are also $54K lower due to delayed projects and billing. Other areas reflecting
savings this fiscal year include small tools ($6K) and office expenses ($3K).

Fund Balance

e The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 2025-26 is
approximately $1.5M.

e The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1.5M which is expected
to be met.

Page 8 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Fund

Revenue Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year
e Total Q2 Revenue reached $5.3M, exceeding budget by $336K (7%).
e Water Deliveries drove the surplus, outperforming budget by $337K (7%) and 562 AF.
Year-over-year growth of $541K (13%) reflects rate increases and an additional 299 AF of
deliveries.

Page 9 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Earnings on Investments generated a $42K favorable variance, up $5K (10%) compared
to last year as a result of increased LAIF deposits.

Fox Canyon revenue tracked closely to projection at $314K. However, compared to prior
year, revenue decreased by $15K due to reduced GMA fees.

Additional revenue from Late Fees contributed $8K to the budget surplus.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year

Total Q2 Expenditures of $4.9M came in $1.4M (22%) below the budgeted amount.
Utilities were down by $285K due to a timing delay in Edison invoices, though still higher
than last year by $142K.

Maintenance costs were under plan by $188K from reduced equipment and structure
upkeep expenses, however, this is expected to pick up later in the year. A year-over-year
decline of $24K reflects deferred chlorine purchases and motor maintenance services.
Fox Canyon expenses were also down by $103K. This is due to an invoicing timing
difference and is expected to realign later in the year.

Water Chemicals expenses had a $97K favorable variance from reduced treatment
chemical purchases, reflecting a $18K decline year-over-year.

Insurance costs saw savings of $31K. This was attributable to lower premiums and
represents a $67K reduction from last year.

Miscellaneous expenses came in $19K under budget, mainly due to a prorated software
refund and savings in rental equipment for the relocation of a container. The refund resulted
in a $16K decline compared to last year.

Permit and Licensing expenses were $4K below plan in the second quarter, but $26K up
from last year due to an earlier Annual Water Systems Fees payment.

Fuel expenses continue to rise, coming in over budget by $5K for Q2 and with an increase
of $7K from last year.

Contractual Services reflected a $19K favorable variance. This was due to lower Water
Quality Analysis expenses along with reduced demand for IT Consulting, which was driven
by savings in alarm software licensing fees.

Overhead costs were $113K down and decreased by $95K year-over-year.

Principal payments were under budget $129K as 2020 COP payments were applied
directly against liability.

Capital Outlay underperformed budget by $596K (86%) due to deferred projects, including
OH Pipeline valve replacements, gas engine piping improvements, and OH Structures and
Improvements acquisitions. This represents a $146K year-over-year decline as the
construction of a new pressure relief station along with accelerated OH Pipeline and El Rio
Fe/Mn Plant work was completed in the prior-year period.

Personnel Costs were over plan by $272K (50%), primarily from the July 2025 CalPERS
unfunded liability payment, which is allocated evenly throughout the year and from
increased work on the OH Pipeline system.

Page 10 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

e Total Expenditures increased $2.6M (113%) from prior year, predominantly driven by $2.3M
in Transfers-Out for Capital Improvement Projects.

Fund Balance
e The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately
$1.2M.
e The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1.2M for this fund which
is expected to be met.

Page 11 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Pleasant Valley Pipeline Fund

Revenue Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year

Revenue for the second quarter totaled $195K, which is $5K (3%) under the year-to-date
budget. Primarily driven by Water Delivery for the second quarter which totaled 2,734 AF
versus the budgeted 3,951 AF, a difference of 1,217 AF, resulting in $24K variance (14%)
below budget. Grants were also under plan by $6K, due to a delay in the request for
reimbursement from the Cal OES State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program,
however, invoicing is expected to pick up in the next quarter. LAIF investment earnings
were also under plan by $3K, reflecting a (17%) variance due to lower interest rates and
less than budgeted fund balances throughout the year.

Page 12 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Other Revenue in the second quarter is up by $28K (1,119%) driven primarily by Fox
Canyon GMA Charges due to pumping at the Saticoy Well Field.

Compared to the prior fiscal year, overall revenue is down $88K (31%), driven primarily
by a $99K decrease in Water Delivery revenue—a difference of 2,471 AF less water
being delivered in the current fiscal year. Other variances include a year-over-year
decrease in investment earnings of -$16K (54%), contributing to the overall revenue
decline.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year

Total expenditures through Q2 were $249K, coming in $116K (32%) under budget. The
main contributor to this positive variance was that Personnel Costs were $116K (62%)
under budget, driven by staff vacancies, lower benefit costs, and payroll savings due to
timing and classification differences.

Operating Expenditures under budget by $10K (7%), largely due to savings in maintenance
which is expected to pick up later in the year.

Capital Outlay came in over budget by $9K (25%), due to additional Structures and
Improvements expenditures related to the El Rio steel storage building.

Transfers Out remained aligned with budget at $9K, supporting planned capital projects
and infrastructure reserves.

Compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year, total expenditure is up by $69K (38%),
driven primarily by additional Capital Outlay expenditures in the current fiscal year ($43K),
Operating Expenses ($19K) and Personnel Costs ($11K).

Fund Balance

The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately
$692K.

The district’s reserve policy requires a $329K minimum undesignated balance which is
expected tobe met.

Page 13 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Pumping Trough Pipeline Fund

Revenue Status v. Budget
e Second Quarter revenue totaled $601K, under plan by $122K (17%). This variance is
primarily due to lower Fox Canyon GMA revenue, resulting from reduced water deliveries
through the PTP System. Of the 2,471 AF delivered in the second quarter, 1,442 AF was

from surface water.

Page 14 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Grant revenue was also $45K below budget due to a delay in funding for the PTP Recycled
Water Connection Project, with anticipated receipt within this fiscal year.

Offsetting the decrease in revenue is increased Earnings on Investments of $31K (89%)
due to higher LAIF interest rates.

Water deliveries totaled $433K and aligned with the budgeted figures for the Second
Quarter.

Revenue Status v. Prior Year

FY 2025-26 Second Quarter revenue decreased by $1.9M (76%) compared to the prior
fiscal year. Primarily decrease is from $1.7M (80%) less in water deliveries due to
significant PTP O&M fee decrease in current fiscal year.

Grant revenue declined by $105K compared to the second quarter of the prior year, due to
timing differences in grant reimbursements.

The $21K increase in Fox Canyon GMA revenue partially offset underrun in the second
quarter of FY 2025-26. This increase is the result of higher pumped water deliveries (985
AF) compared to the prior fiscal year. Additionally, investment earnings increased by $5K
(8%) due to higher LAIF interest rates.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget

Total Expenditures were $2.3M, coming in $1.3M (36%) below plan. Largely due to
operating expenditures $1M (58%) below budget.

The largest variance was in principal payments ($440K) related to the 2020 COP which is
budgeted as expenses but applied directly to liabilities.

This variance is also contributed to by a decrease in Capital Outlay cost ($169K), mainly
due to delays in replacing the El Rio Pond inlet piping and moss screens.

Maintenance expenses were also $161K under budget due to delays in repairs and
maintenance of the PTP line. In addition, Fox Canyon GMA expenses were $131K below
budget due to delayed payment processing.

Utilities were $130K lower than projected due to a delay in Southern California Edison
invoicing and reduced pumping on PTP wells due to surface water deliveries.

In addition, Overhead Costa are $78K under plan and interest expense was $97K below
plan due to the timing but is scheduled to be posted in third quarter.

Offsetting these savings in the operations expenditure are insurance expenses over budget
by $14K, primarily due to SDRMA premium payment made in July 2025 but budgeted
across the full fiscal year.

Other variances include in Water Chemical over budget of $13K, due to increased
purchase of Hypochlorite solution for the Moss Screens and the PTP Reservoir

Permits and Licenses exceeded budget by $6K, and Fuel expense was also $6K higher.
Personnel Costs reflect total salary savings of $102K largely from less than anticipated
workload related to PTP activities. Additional savings were in benefits, including Medical

Page 15 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Insurance Coverage ($18K), Workers’ Compensation ($8K), and Social Security ($7K),
below budget.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year

Total Expenditures FY 2025-26 decreased $30K (1%) compared to the last fiscal year.
primarily due to $86K (50%) reduction in Capital Outlay. The decline reflects PTP turnout
valve replacements completed in Q1 of the prior year.

Transfers-Out for Capital Improvement Projects decreased $44K (3%) from FY 2024-25.
Personnel Costs decreased $4K, as salaries decreased $15K due to reduced PTP
Pipelines’ activity, and additional savings ($1.4K) resulting from lower Workers' Comp
Expenses. Offsetting these savings are higher expenses in FY 2025-26, in Retirement-
Classic $12K and PEPRA for $1.2K.

Offsetting savings are operating expenditures for FY 2025-26 $163K (29%) higher than
the prior fiscal year. The primary driver is the higher interest expense of $47K due to
interfund loan followed by increased overhead costs of $46K. Utilities rose by $40K due to
higher electricity rates and an increase in usage. Fox Canyon GMA expenses increased
by $30K due to higher water production from the PTP wells. Additional increases include
permit/license ($26K), Safety Supplies ($3K), and Fuel ($3K).

Counteracting the higher operating expenses are savings in miscellaneous expenses
($10K) brought by an Electrical and DMV refund. Followed by Water Quality Analysis, it
reduced $8K due to delayed invoice processing this year. Additional savings are in Water
chemical $5K and Professional fees $1.2K.

Fund Balance

The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 2025-26 is ($115K).
The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1M for this fund which
is not expected to be met.

Page 16 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

State Water Fund

Revenue Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year
e Revenue for the second quarter was $2.4M, over budget by $25K (1%) due to $29K in property
taxes received over plan. Slightly offsetting increase are earnings on LAIF investment which were
under plan by $3K (6%), influenced by the GAAP market value adjustment.
e Compared to FY 2024-25, overall revenue is down by $290K (11%), due to property taxes down by
$260K (10%) and Earnings on Investments down $89K (30%).

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year
o Total expenditure for the second quarter was $2.2M, being over budget by $166K (8%). This
overage is mainly driven by increased variable costs from State Water Purchases, including a
contract for additional Table A water paid in July but budgeted throughout the full year.
e Compared to prior year, expenditures increased by $98K (4%), this came from an increase in
Table A and supplemental water purchases in FY 2025-26.

Page 17 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Fund Balance
e The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately $5.7M,
which is within the District's fund reserve maximum of $7.3M.
e The entire fund balance is designated for the fixed and variable costs related to the District’'s
State Water Project allocation of 5,000 acre feet per year plus allowable Table A water.

Page 18 of 19



FY 2025-26 Second Quarter Financial Review

July 1, 2025, through December 31, 2025
50% of Fiscal Year Completed

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year

Total Expenditures through Q2 amount to $3M, which is $1.6M (35%) under budget.

Total Personnel Cost was under projection by $294K (13%) due to several positions hired at a lower
range than anticipated.

The largest savings were in Professional Fees $1.2M primarily due to hiring in house Public
Outreach External Affairs Manager, delayed specialized services and a lower than anticipated Legal
Counsel usage, both expected to increase later in the fiscal year.

Contributing to the variance, Safety Supplies are down ($65K) from a delay in Santa Clara Riverbed
security enhancements.

Also, under budget includes Maintenance ($38K), Travel Expense ($31K) and Utilities ($18K) that
are expected to be fully utilized later in the fiscal year.

Slightly offsetting the savings are Office Expenses ($29K).

Page 19 of 19



To:

STAFF REPORT

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager

Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Josh Perez, Chief Human Resources Officer

Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer

Tony Huynh, Risk and Safety Manager

Zachary Plummer, Technology Systems Manager
Jackie Lozano, Senior Administrative Assistant

Date: February 23, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 5.1 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report

Information Item

Staff Recommendation:
Review this monthly report from the Administrative Services Department for its activities
for January 2026, as well as receive a verbal presentation of its highlights.

Discussion:

Finance

Finalized policy and processes for Placement of Direct Assessments on the Ventura
County Secured Property Tax Roll

Compiling FY2026-27 budget information for review with the District's General
Manager and Assistant General Managers

Completed period 25-2 Groundwater billing on February 20, 2026

Administrative Services

Provided administrative assistance for drafting, finalizing, distributing/posting
materials, and room set up for the following committee meetings: Finance and Audit
(Jan. 5), Water Resources (Jan. 6), Engineering and Operations (Jan. 8), Executive
Committee (Jan. 12), as well as Special Board of Directors (Jan. 5) and regular
Board of Directors (Jan. 14).

Provided internal support for the UWCD quarterly tour (Jan. 28).

Coordinated logistical support with room and beverage setup for the following
outside agency meetings: AWA Board/Executive Committee (Jan. 8), AWA
WaterWise Breakfast (Jan. 15), VC-CWA (Jan. 15), and Water Issues Committee
(Jan. 20).

Working on conceptual ideas for the UWCD museum and axillary room.



5.1 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report

Information ltem

Human Resources

Working on recruitment for the following positions:

0 Senior Accountant, interviews held February 10

0 Public Outreach and External Affairs Intern, initial interviews held February 11 —
23, selection pending GM approval

o Senior Hydrogeologist, additional interviews being conducted February 18

0 Seasonal Park Ranger Assistant, initial interviews scheduled for week of
February 23

o Park Ranger I, application process closed — interviews being scheduled

Working on recruitment for the following positions:

Completed processing of the 2025 1094C and 1095C for full-time employees

required by the Department of Treasury

Posted annual OSHA Form 300A and Regulatory Compliance posters at all District

facilities in collaboration with Risk Management staff

CHRO attended Express Employment — 2026 Employment Law Update on

January 29, 2026

Hosted Special Session — Enhancing Productivity with the Use of Al hosted by Dr.

Frank Olmos on February 19, 2026

Registered to attend Ventura College Career Tech Education fair on March 10,

2026

Human Resources and Risk and Safety staff are also scheduled to attend the

SDRMA Spring Education Day on March 18, 2026, as part of ongoing safety

training and specialization efforts designed to maximize insurance savings.

Risk and Safety Management

Activated District Emergency Operation Center to coordinate storm preparedness
and recovery activities.

Covered Valley Fever at monthly safety meeting as part of annual compliance
requirement.

Supported monthly dam siren test on the ground in Piru.

Continued to respond to RFIs from Cal OES Audit on Winter Storm Disaster
Recovery Project with support from Finance.

Supported internal working group on contractor selection efforts and strategy for
December 2025 Winter Storms debris removal.

Received $120,309 as reimbursement from CAL OES regarding damage sustained
in the 2023 winter storms.

Information Technology

Total Tickets (February): 32



5.1 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report

Information ltem

Tickets Priority Breakdown (February)

High: 0
Medium: O
Low: 32

Top Themes (February)

As of the date of this report, 51 service tickets were closed in February. Resolution time
on average was about 4 days for all the tickets that were closed in the period. Ticket
activity primarily reflected routine operational support and user assistance.

System Maintenance and Cybersecurity

Completed password anniversary audit and coordinated required resets for staff
with access to critical systems to maintain policy compliance.

Delivered Operator-Specific Cybersecurity Training during the regularly scheduled
District Safety Meeting to reinforce secure operational practices.

Continued active threat monitoring and filtering of phishing attempts, malicious
websites (anti-bot protections), and malware.

Weekly average: ~6,000 inbound emails; ~1,400 (23%) identified and filtered as
spam.

Supported LPRA with PCI DSS compliance coordination and validation of required
security controls.

Infrastructure and Systems

Coordinated remediation of a Wide Area Network interruption affecting Lake Piru
Recreation and Dam Maintenance locations. Restoration required multi-site
equipment repair (LP Rangers Office, Water Treatment Plant, Torrey Mountain,
and Dam Communications Building) following a power equipment failure after
planned utility maintenance.

Conducted SCADA reporting software suite demonstration with Control Systems
and gathered cross-team feedback to evaluate modernization of reporting
capabilities.

Resolved LPRA Wi-Fi access code expiration issue and adapted to updated
website inventory management procedures.

Meeting and Event Support

Provided hybrid and in-person IT coordination for multiple district and partner
meetings, including Farm Bureau (50+ participants), California Avocado
Commission (full-day session), University Extended Education, and AWA sessions
at Hopper Creek and Main Conference Center.

Supported Emergency Operations Center activation in preparation for storm
readiness.

Conducted staff consultations to improve utilization of Microsoft 365 tools (Outlook,
Teams, SharePoint, and M365 groups).

Assisted Public Outreach with procurement of a new Lake Piru promotional web
domain.



5.1 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report
Information Item

e |Initiated research into updated watershed relief model options using modern

fabrication technologies.
e Performed ongoing offsite network equipment upgrades and workstation

deployments, including support at the SFD location.



STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Tara Mulally, Public Outreach and External Affairs Manager
Date: February 25, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)
Agenda Item: 5.2 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly

Report
Information Item

Staff Recommendation:

Review this monthly report from the Public Outreach and External Affairs Department of
its activities for February 2026, as well as receive a verbal presentation of its highlights.
Discussion:

Qutreach Events and Tours

United Water Conservation District continues to use tours, presentations, and community
events as key opportunities to strengthen relationships, increase transparency, and
highlight the District's work throughout the region. February activities focused on
engagement with regional partners, community leaders, and stakeholders, while
upcoming events will expand educational outreach and agency collaboration.

Recent Events and Presentations

Grand Jury Presentation — February 18
District staff provided an overview of United Water's operations, priorities, and regional
role in water management.

CoLAB WHEEL Meeting Update — February 18
Staff shared updates with regional business and community leaders, continuing ongoing
coordination with partners across Ventura County.

Gene Fisher Retirement Celebration — February 19
Staff and partners gathered to recognize Gene Fisher’s contributions and service.



5.2 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report

Information ltem

Upcoming Tours and Events

Ventura County Conservation Districts Tour (March 3)
CSU Channel Islands Tour (March 11)

Piru Power Run 5K & 1K Fun Run/Walk (March 28)
Ventura County Farm Day (April 11)

Quarterly Tour (April 29)

Annual Communications Plan

Implementation of the Annual Communications Plan continued to progress in February,
with efforts focused on strengthening message consistency, expanding public-facing
materials, and supporting the District’s broader Visibility and Value communications
initiative.

Completed ltems

Updated Talking Points developed to ensure consistent messaging across
staff, leadership, and public engagements

District Commercial Completed, creating a new storytelling tool that highlights
United Water’s regional role, infrastructure, and public value

District Presentation Updated to create consistency in brand, thereby
increasing credibility

Website Updates in Progress to improve clarity, accessibility, and organization
of key District information

Fleet Logos in Progress, increasing everyday visibility of the District throughout
the service area

Upcoming March Initiatives

Brand Assessment

Style Guide Development

Updated Legislative Platform Document

Legislative Support Form Letters

Board Media and Outreach Training One-on-Ones (Scheduled)

Continued Website Refresh Progress, including:
o0 Legislative Website Page

Funding Website Page

FAQs

Interactive Project Map

Updated Content Throughout

O O0OO0Oo



5.2 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report
Information Item

Social Media Analytics Brief, Findings and Considerations

United Water Conservation District's social media platforms serve as an important tool
for increasing public awareness, sharing timely updates, and reinforcing the District’s role
in regional water management. During February, content remained focused on supporting
the Visibility and Value initiative while highlighting District activities, infrastructure, and
community engagement.

Recent efforts have emphasized consistent posting, strategic message amplification, and
clear storytelling about the District’s work. Select posts continue to be boosted to expand
visibility beyond existing followers and reach residents throughout the service area. This
approach allows the District to maximize the impact of key announcements, educational
content, and community updates.

Content highlighting projects, tours, and staff expertise continues to generate strong
engagement, reinforcing that audiences respond well to posts that show how the District’s
work connects directly to the community.

United Water Conservation District Social Media Platforms

Facebook Likes: 866 (Net Increase of 1 Follower)
LinkedIn Followers: 567 (Net Increase of 40 Followers)
Instagram Followers: 22 (Net Increase of 6 Followers)
Nextdoor Interactions: 5,086 Impressions

Lake Piru Social Media Platforms

Facebook Followers: 3,257 (Net Increase of 268 Followers)
Instagram Followers: 1,694 (Net Increase of 102 Followers)

January Posting Plans and Tactics

United Water Conservation District

e Continue advancing Visibility and Value Campaign messaging across platforms,
showcase commercial video

e Highlight United Water’s role in regional water reliability, groundwater recharge,
and infrastructure stewardship

e Use selective post boosting to expand visibility of high-value content within the
District’s service area

e Promote upcoming tours and stakeholder engagement opportunities

e Feature staff expertise, operations, and facilities to reinforce transparency and
public understanding



5.2 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report
Information Item

e Maintain consistent posting cadence to strengthen recognition of the District's work

and impact
Lake Piru
e Continue promotion of the Lake Piru 5K, increasing awareness as the event
approaches
e Highlight Lake Piru as an active outdoor recreation destination through seasonal
content

e Showcase scenic visuals, visitor experiences, and recreational opportunities

e Support event and recreation messaging with targeted boosted posts where
appropriate

e Maintain regular posting to encourage visitation and community engagement



STAFF REPORT
To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager

From: Bernard Riedel Jr., Senior Park Ranger
Date: February 25, 2026 (March 2, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 5.3 Recreation Department Monthly Report
Information Item

Staff Recommendation:
Review this monthly report from the Recreation Department of its activities for January
2026, as well as receive a verbal presentation of its highlights.

Discussion:

January is the middle of the slow season for the Lake Piru Recreation Area (LPRA), so
visitation is low. Revenues for January 2026 were higher than those from January 2026,
likely due to higher lake levels this year and a wildfire during the same period in 2025. A
rainstorm beginning on December 24, 2025, filled the reservoir to capacity, but also
brought in a significant amount of woody debris from middle Piru Creek.

Staff Tasks and Activity Highlights

Recreation staff have been coordinating with Engineering, Finance, O&M, Environmental
Services, and Water Resources to develop a debris cleanup plan and procure suitable
contractors to remove the floating debris brought into Lake Piru by the December storms.

Staff Training/Meetings/Events

e January 19: Park Ranger Spencer attended a Public Safety First Aid Responder
refresher training. PSFA Refresher Safety Training is an 8-hour course designed
for public safety personnel. The training covers essential topics and includes the
American Heart Association BLS (Basic Life Support) CPR/AED course
completion certificate.

e Various dates: Rangers completed training in case law, law enforcement policies
and procedures, from District vendor Lexipol.

e Various dates: Rangers completed safety training from District vendor Target
Solutions.




5.3 Recreation Department Monthly Report
Information Item

2026 Day Use/Other Revenue Recap and Comparison
2026 Day Use/Other Revenue (Jan 1 — Jan 31) $26,254
2026 Boat Rental Revenue (Jan 1 — Jan 31) $2,855
2025 Day Use/Other Revenue (Jan 1 — Jan 31) $14,858
Total Revenue Increase/Decrease from Prior Year $11,396
Annual Increase/Decrease % 77.0%
2026 Camping Revenue (Jan 1 — Jan 31) $29,364
2025 Camping Revenue (Jan 1 — Jan 31) $17,401
Total Revenue Increase/Decrease from Prior Year $11,963
Annual Increase/Decrease in % 69.0%
2026 All Revenue (Jan 1 — Jan 31) $55,618
2025 All Revenue (Jan 1 — Jan 31) $32,259
Total Revenue Increase from Prior Year $23,359
Annual Increase/Decrease in % 72.5%

* |t should be noted that the above figures have not been verified by the District’'s Finance
Department.

2026 Total Visitation Figures
Month # People # Vehicles # Vessels Pets
January 2,208 1,063 151 8
Total 2,208 1,063 151 8
Incidents

e Nothing to report

Citations/Enforcement Summary

e No citations were issued. It should be noted that Ranger staff issued verbal
warnings for violations of District ordinances and state laws.

Grants
e Nothing to report.



	2026-03-02 UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting AGENDA
	2.2 - SR Approval of Minutes
	2.3 - SR Check Recap Monthly Reports
	2.4 - SR Investment Monthly Report - January 2026
	2.5 - SR Pipeline Delivery Monthly Report
	2.6 - SR FY25-26 Q2 Reimbursement for District Staff and Board Report
	2.7 - SR FY2025-26 Q2 Board Requested Cost Tracking Items
	3.1 - SR Direct Assessments On Ventura County Secured Property Tax Roll
	3.2 - SR Payment Plan Request from Farmers Irrigation Company
	3.3 - SR Ratify PO Agreement Aquatic Harvesting
	3.4 - SR Ratify PO Agreement Quality Ag
	4 - SR FY2025-26 Q2 Financial Reports
	5.1 - SR Admin Services Dept Monthly Report_Mar 2026 Mtg
	5.2 - SR Public Outreach and External Affairs Dept Monthly Report_Mar 2026 Mtg
	5.3 - SR Recreation Dept Monthly Report_Mar 2026 Mtg



